

Industry Online Support

ale-

NEWS

Migration Guide SIMATIC S7-31xT to SIMATIC S7-1500(T)

SIMATIC S7-1500T / TIA Portal V14

https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/109743136

Siemens Industry Online Support



Warranty and Liability

Note

The Application Examples are not binding and do not claim to be complete regarding the circuits shown, equipping and any eventuality. The Application Examples do not represent customer-specific solutions. They are only intended to provide support for typical applications. You are responsible for ensuring that the described products are used correctly. These Application Examples do not relieve you of the responsibility to use safe practices in application, installation, operation and maintenance. When using these Application Examples, you recognize that we cannot be made liable for any damage/claims beyond the liability clause described. We reserve the right to make changes to these Application Examples at any time without prior notice.

If there are any deviations between the recommendations provided in these Application Examples and other Siemens publications – e.g. Catalogs – the contents of the other documents have priority.

We do not accept any liability for the information contained in this document. Any claims against us – based on whatever legal reason – resulting from the use of the examples, information, programs, engineering and performance data etc., described in this Application Example shall be excluded. Such an exclusion shall not apply in the case of mandatory liability, e.g. under the German Product Liability Act ("Produkthaftungsgesetz"), in case of intent, gross negligence, or injury of life, body or health, guarantee for the quality of a product, fraudulent concealment of a deficiency or breach of a condition which goes to the root of the contract ("wesentliche Vertragspflichten"). The damages for a breach of a substantial contractual obligation are, however, limited to the foreseeable damage, typical for the type of contract, except in the event of intent or gross negligence or injury to life, body or health. The above provisions do not imply a change of the burden of proof to your detriment.

Any form of duplication or distribution of these Application Examples or excerpts hereof is prohibited without the expressed consent of the Siemens AG.

Security information

Siemens provides products and solutions with industrial security functions that support the secure operation of plants, systems, machines and networks. In order to protect plants, systems, machines and networks against cyber threats, it is necessary to implement – and continuously maintain – a holistic, state-of-the-art industrial security concept. Siemens' products and solutions only form one element of such a concept.

Customer is responsible to prevent unauthorized access to its plants, systems, machines and networks. Systems, machines and components should only be connected to the enterprise network or the internet if and to the extent necessary and with appropriate security measures (e.g. use of firewalls and network segmentation) in place.

Additionally, Siemens' guidance on appropriate security measures should be taken into account. For more information about industrial security, please visit <u>http://www.siemens.com/industrialsecurity</u>.

Siemens' products and solutions undergo continuous development to make them more secure. Siemens strongly recommends to apply product updates as soon as available and to always use the latest product versions. Use of product versions that are no longer supported, and failure to apply latest updates may increase customer's exposure to cyber threats.

To stay informed about product updates, subscribe to the Siemens Industrial Security RSS Feed under <u>http://www.siemens.com/industrialsecurity</u>.

Table of Contents

Warr	Warranty and Liability2			
1	Motivati	on	6	
	1.1 1.2 1.2.1 1.2.2	Objective of this document Hardware and software components Validity Components used	6 6 6 7	
2	Compar	ison between the CPU31xT and the S7-1500(T)	9	
	2.1 2.1.1 2.1.2 2.1.3 2.1.4 2.1.5 2.2 2.3	General overview SIMATIC S7-31xT architecture SIMATIC S7-1500(T) architecture SIMATIC S7-1500(T) execution system Error concepts Differences in the range of functions Technologies compared Technology functions compared	9 9 10 11 11 12 12 13	
3	Sample	Migration	18	
	3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.6	Overview Advantages Restrictions Requirement Preparing the STEP 7 project Step 1: Migrating the user project to TIA Portal Step 2: Replacing the unspecified CPU Step 3: Generating technology objects Step 4: Customizing the program Step 5: Customizing the HMI	18 18 19 19 20 22 26 26 27	
4	Progran	nming Tips	28	
	4.1 4.1.1 4.2 4.2 4.2.1 4.2.2 4.2.3 4.2.3 4.2.4 4.2.5	Transferring axis objects to user FBs Layered concept of the Axis technology object Transferring axis types to user function blocks Transferring other technology objects Cam technology object Output Cam technology object Cam Track technology object Measuring Input technology object External Encoder technology object.	28 28 30 32 33 35 36 38 40	
	4.3 4.4 4.4.1 4.4.2 4.4.3	Creating a cam with the editor Notes on using technology objects Interpolating a cam Scaling a cam Synchronization using a cam	40 44 44 44 46	
	4.4.4 4.4.5 4.4.6 4.4.7 4.5 4.5.1 4.5.2 4.5.3 4.5.3 4.5.4	Synchronization of gearing at a standstill Synchronization of camming at a standstill Changing a cam on-the-fly Canceling a synchronous operation Programming functions for multiple axes Moving the instance data of a function block Arranging the technology objects in an array Example: Acknowledging alarms on many axes in a loop Example: Accessing axis data from the HMI	49 51 52 52 53 54 54 56 57	
	4.6 4.7	Providing axis data in the user program Organization blocks for motion control	59 60	

	4.7.1 4.7.2 4.7.3	Basic information about motion control OBs Clock reduction (CPU firmware V1.5 and higher) Processing the motion control functionality	60 61 61
	4.7.4	Using the MC-PreServo and MC-PostServo OBs	61
	4.8	Motion control resources	64
	4.8.1	Motion control resources provided	64
	4.8.2	Number of cams provided	65
	4.8.3	Motion control resources consumed	66
	4.8.4	Checking the motion control resource consumption	66
5	Appendi	х	68
	5.1	Information about the technologies	68
	5.1.1	Single-axis motion functions	68
	5.1.2	Gearing and camming	68
	5.1.3	Output cams and cam tracks, measuring inputs and external	
		encoders	69
	5.1.4	Path objects	69
	5.1.5	Pressure control	69
	5.1.6	Hydraulic axes	69
	5.2	PLCopen blocks compared	69
	5.2.1	MC Power	72
	5.2.2	MC Reset	75
	5.2.3	MC Home	76
	5.2.4	MC Stop	79
	5.2.5	MC Halt	81
	5.2.6	MC HaltSuperImposed	83
	5.2.7	MC ChangeDataSet	84
	5.2.8	MC MoveAbsolute	85
	5.2.9	MC MoveRelative	88
	5.2.10	MC MoveAdditive	90
	5.2.11	MC MoveSuperImposed	92
	5.2.12	MC MoveVelocity	94
	5.2.13	MC Move log	97
	5.2.14	MC MoveToEndPos	99
	5.2.15	MC_SetToraueLimit / MC_ToraueLimit	01
	5.2.16	MC SetCharacteristics	03
	5.2.17	MC ForceLimiting	05
	5.2.18	MC ForceControl	08
	5.2.19	MC GearIn / MC GearIn	11
	5 2 20	MC Gearln / MC GearlnPos	14
	5.2.21	MC GearOut	17
	5 2 22	MC GearInSuperImposed	18
	5.2.23	MC GearOutSuperImposed	20
	5.2.24	MC Phasing / MC PhasingRelative	22
	5.2.25	MC Phasing / MC PhasingAbsolute	24
	5.2.26	MC PhasingSuperImposed	26
	5.2.27	MC Camin	28
	5.2.28	MC CamQut	32
	5 2 29	MC CamInSuperImposed	33
	5.2.30	MC_CamOutSuperImposed	36
	5 2 31	MC_CamClear	38
	5.2.32	MC_CamSectorAdd	39
	5.2.33	MC_CamInterpolate / MC_InterpolateCam	41
	5 2 34	MC_GetCamPoint / MC_GetCamFollowingValue	43
	5 2 35	MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation	45
	5 2 36	MC_GetCamPoint / MC_GetCamLeadingValue	46
	5 2 37	MC_CamSwitch / MC_OutputCam	48
	5 2 38	MC_CamSwitchTime / MC_OutputCam	150
	5.2.00		

7	History.		165
6	Links &	Literature	165
	5.2.45	MC_ExternalEncoder	163
	5.2.44	MC_MeasuringInput / MC_AbortMeasuringInput	161
	5.2.43	MC_MeasuringInput / MC_MeasuringInputCyclic	159
	5.2.42	MC_MeasuringInput / MC_MeasuringInput	157
	5.2.41	MC_WriteCamTrackData	156
	5.2.40	MC_ReadCamTrackData	155
	5.2.39	MC_CamTrack	152

1.1 Objective of this document

1 Motivation

1.1 Objective of this document

The aim of this documentation is to show users of the Technology CPU 31xT-2 DP / Technology CPU 31xT-3 PN/DP options for migrating to the new CPUs of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series.

SIMATIC S7-1500 CPUs

SIMATIC S7-1500 CPUs are SIMATIC standard CPUs. They all have selected integrated motion control functions and can therefore be directly used for simple motion control applications without additional hardware and software.

SIMATIC S7-1500T CPUs

SIMATIC S7-1500T CPUs are SIMATIC CPUs that are specifically tailored to the requirements of higher-quality motion control applications and have a greater range of motion control functions than SIMATIC standard CPUs.

Using these CPUs in TIA Portal does not require additional software. S7-1500T CPUs are fully integrated in the TIA Portal engineering framework.

Structure of this document

The aim of this documentation is to answer questions involved in the planning or considerations regarding the migration from the previous Technology CPU 31xT to a SIMATIC S7-1500 / SIMATIC S7-1500T by addressing the following topics in greater detail:

- Comparison of the technologies or technology objects included in the CPUs.
- Comparison of the technology functions or PLCopen blocks that can be used in the individual CPUs.
- Sample migration of a STEP 7 V5.5 user project with the aid of TIA Portal for further use as the basis for a project with a SIMATIC S7-1500 / SIMATIC S7-1500T.
- Various programming tips to make migrating from STEP 7 V5.5 to TIA Portal and SIMATIC CPUs of the S7-1500 / S7-1500T series easier.
- The Appendix compares the interfaces of the PLCopen blocks in the different CPUs, including information about aspects that need to be considered, especially when transferring a user program.

To migrate a user project from STEP 7 V5.5 to TIA Portal, it is sufficient to read Chapters 1 to 3. All other chapters of this document are intended to provide you with additional information for revising the user project in TIA Portal after the successful migration.

1.2 Hardware and software components

1.2.1 Validity

This documentation is valid for

- TIA Portal or STEP 7 V14 and higher
- SIMATIC S7-1500 firmware version V2.0 and higher or SIMATIC S7-1500T firmware version V2.0 and higher

1.2 Hardware and software components

Note Migrating a project requires that the migration functionality of TIA Portal, STEP 7 V5.x, S7 Technology V4.x and, if necessary, WinCC flexible 2008 with the required service packs (SP) and hotfixes (HF) be installed on the PG/PC. Otherwise, the TIA Portal migration wizard cannot perform the migration.

1.2.2 Components used

This documentation was created with the following components:

Hardware components

Table 1-1

Component	No.	Article number	Note			
SIMATIC Technology	SIMATIC Technology CPU 31xT					
Technology CPU 317T-2 DP	1	6ES7317-6TK13-0AB0	CPU317T-2 DP, 1024KB Firmware version: V2.7.2			
Technology CPU 317T-3 PN/DP	1	6ES7317-7TK10-0AB0	CPU317T-3 PN/DP, 1024KB Firmware version: V3.2.12			
SIMATIC S7-1500	SIMATIC S7-1500					
SIMATIC CPU 1516-3 PN/DP	1	6ES7516-3AN01-0AB0	CPU 1516-3 PN/DP, 1MB FOR PROGRAM, 5MB FOR DATA Eirmware version: V2 0 3			
SIMATIC S7-1500T	l					
SIMATIC CPU 1515T-2 PN	1	6ES7515-2TM01-0AB0	CPU 1515T-2 PN, 750KB FOR PROGRAM, 3MB FOR DATA Firmware version: V2.0.3			

Software components

Table 1-2

Component	No.	Article number	Note
SIMATIC Technology	/ CPU 31	хТ	
SIMATIC STEP 7 V5.5 software	1	6ES7810-4CC10-0YA5	STEP7 V5.5 SP4 – FLOATING LICENSE
S7 Technology V4.2 option package	1	6ES7864-1CC42-0YA5	
SIMATIC S7-1500 / S		S7-1500T	
TIA Portal V14	1		Always included in the individual components as an engineering framework.
STEP 7 Professional V14	1	6ES7822-1AA04-0YC5	SIMATIC STEP 7 PROF. V14 FLOATING LICENSE; engineering software in TIA Portal.

1.2 Hardware and software components

Sample files and projects

The following list contains all files and projects that are used in this example.

Table 1-3

Component	Note
109743136_S7-1500T_	This document.
MigrationGuide_DOC_v10_en.pdf	

2.1 General overview

2

Comparison between the CPU31xT and the S7-1500(T)

The following chapters compare the CPU types of the CPU31xT from Step7 V5.5 and S7 Technology V4.2 with the CPU S7-1500 and S7-1500T from TIA Portal V14 and provide a comparison of the available functionalities.

2.1 General overview

The two CPU types of the SIMATIC S7-31xT and SIMATIC S7-1500(T) essentially differ in their architectures and the sequence models of the PLC program.

2.1.1 SIMATIC S7-31xT architecture

The previous Technology CPU 31xT was implemented as a dual-processor system, with one processor dedicated to processing the SIMATIC user program and the second one dedicated to processing the technology functions. Both processors basically run asynchronously to one another.

To control the technology, for example the axes connected to the technology CPU, the SIMATIC CPU uses the PLCopen function blocks of the technology functions to send jobs to the technology processor via a job memory. At the same time, the technology processor returns the current status of the running jobs to the SIMATIC CPU.

The status of the technology objects can be determined in the SIMATIC CPU using the technology data blocks, for example the axis DBs, that are cyclically updated by the technology processor.



Figure 2-1 Technology CPU 31xT(F)

In the architecture of the previous Technology CPU 31xT, the job memory and the technology data blocks are thus the link between the two CPU processors.

2.1 General overview

2.1.2 SIMATIC S7-1500(T) architecture

In contrast, the CPUs of the SIMATIC S7-1500 and SIMATIC S7-1500T series are implemented as a high-performance single-processor system. Therefore, the technology is an integral part of the SIMATIC CPU.

This allows the user program to send new technology jobs at any time via the PLCopen function blocks that become effective immediately in the next interpolator cycle.

The technology objects are accessed via the technology data blocks, for example the axis DBs. However, the current status of the technology objects and the parameters of a technology object can now be accessed symbolically directly from the user program without using a PLCopen function block.



Figure 2-2 SIMATIC S7-1500(T)

The major advantage of this single-processor architecture of the CPUs of the SIMATIC S7-1500 and SIMATIC S7-1500T series is the permanent availability of the parameters and data of the technology or technology objects. It is not necessary to request this data using PLCopen functions and there is no deterministic job processing behavior of the PLCopen function blocks as these are executed directly in the next interpolator cycle.

Note The PLCopen functions for data exchange between the PLC and the technology part in the SIMATIC S7-31xT (e.g., MC_ReadSysParameter) are no longer necessary in the CPUs of the SIMATIC S7-1500 and SIMATIC S7-1500T series. The data of the technology objects can now be accessed directly from the user program, which is why these blocks are no longer supported in the SIMATIC S7-1500 / SIMATIC S7-1500T.

2.1 General overview

2.1.3 SIMATIC S7-1500(T) execution system

The execution system of the CPUs of the SIMATIC S7-1500 and SIMATIC S7-1500T series consists of multiple organization blocks (OBs) with different priority classes that can be used to appropriately structure a user program.

The technology functions of the SIMATIC S7-1500 and SIMATIC S7-1500T are computed in the MC_Servo and MC_Interpolator organization blocks that are managed by the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) operating system and cannot be accessed by the user. These organization blocks belong to a higher priority class and can therefore interrupt most other SIMATIC S7-1500(T) OBs to achieve high control quality and safe functioning of the technology functions.



Figure 2-3 SIMATIC S7-1500(T) execution system

For particularly dynamic tasks or special matching of I/O signals in the context of the technology functions, program parts of the user program can be programmed in the MC-PreServo organization block for processing directly before the position control cycle and in the MC-PostServo organization block for processing directly after the position control cycle. This virtually enables executing parts of the user program synchronously with the technology's position control cycle.

2.1.4 Error concepts

The two CPU types of the SIMATIC S7-31xT and SIMATIC S7-1500(T) also have different error concepts.

SIMATIC S7-31xT error concept

The SIMATIC S7-31xT reports errors in the technology at different locations in the user program:

- In the event of axis errors or errors on a technology object, the last three errors of the axis or technology object in the technology data block are reported to the user program.
- Other errors resulting from applying the technology functions to a technology object are reported to the user program via the Error or ErrorID output of the technology function's PLCopen function block.

Therefore, error handling of the SIMATIC S7-31xT must be implemented at these two reporting locations in the user program.

2.2 Technologies compared

SIMATIC S7-1500(T) error concept

The SIMATIC S7-1500(T), by contrast, automatically reports axis errors or errors on a technology object to TIA Portal or the HMI without having to create a user program for this purpose. This information can also be viewed using the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) Web server.

Due to the architecture of the SIMATIC S7-1500(T), all error messages of the SIMATIC and the technology are directly displayed in an alarm window of TIA Portal.

In addition, the output error codes of the SIMATIC S7-1500(T)'s technology objects and technology functions were revised and now provide more detailed information about the problem that has occurred. The error code of the main problem is now directly output in the technology object's technology data block, for example for stopping an axis.

For evaluation in the user program, the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) contains one error word and one warning word for each technology object. The current error state of the technology object can be retrieved via their bits.

Note The bit map of the error word and warning word of the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) is not identical with the bit map from the SIMATIC S7-31xT. When migrating a user program, special attention must be paid to the transfer of the program.

Likewise, the error classes of a connected drive defined according to the PROFIdrive standard are automatically reported to the diagnostic system or HMI. However, to accurately determine the cause of the error, this cause must be explicitly analyzed on the drive.

2.1.5 Differences in the range of functions

Finally, you are provided with information on the differences in the range of functions of the SIMATIC S7-31xT and the SIMATIC S7-1500(T).

For the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) firmware version looked at here, the CPU's functional focus is on applications in the field of motion control in interaction with electrically driven axes.

Currently, the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) does not yet have special functions for hydraulic applications as integrated in the SIMATIC S7-31xT. Nevertheless, such functions can be created by application-specific adaptation in the SIMATIC S7-1500(T), for example, in the MC-PostServo organization block.

2.2 Technologies compared

The following list compares the technologies integrated in the different CPU types so that the required CPU type can be preselected before migrating from the CPU31xT to the S7-1500(T).

2.3 Technology functions compared

Technology	S7-31xT	S7-1500	S7-1500T
Single-axis motion functions	Yes	Yes	Yes
Gearing	Yes	Limited	Yes
Camming	Yes	No	Yes
Output cams and cam tracks	Yes	Yes	Yes
Measuring inputs	Yes	Yes	Yes
External encoders	Yes	Yes	Yes
Path objects	Yes	No	No
Pressure control	Yes	No	No
Hydraulic axes	Yes	Specific to application	Specific to application

Note In terms of gearing, the SIMATIC standard CPUs of the **S7-1500 series** provide the **relative gearing** functionality. This means that synchronization always takes place immediately and based on the dynamic response settings. The position reference between the master axis and the slave axis cannot be set. If you want to set the reference between the master axis and the slave axis, synchronize the axes when they are at a standstill.

When gearing is active, the reference can be changed by the MC_MoveSuperImposed technology function.

A CPU of the **S7-1500T series** allows **absolute gearing**, including setting a synchronous position, actual value coupling and phase shift between master axis and slave axis.

2.3 Technology functions compared

The following list compares the technologies functions available in the different CPU types sorted by the technologies listed in the previous chapter.

Note Due to the hardware configuration, different technology functions of the CPU31xT on which the motion control functions are computed on a separate processor are not required in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T. These technology functions are marked accordingly.

Note At present, the range of functions of the S7-1500 / S7-1500T is not yet complete. It will be continuously extended by future firmware versions.

2.3 Technology functions compared

Note All technology functions for motion functions in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T currently have no mode input for defining the override response of the technology function. Regarding their response, these technology functions override one another, i.e., a currently active motion function is overridden and thus stopped by starting another motion function for the same technology object.

Technology functions in the CPU types of the S7-1500 / S7-1500T series marked with the **I** icon are only available in the S7-1500T CPUs.

Technology function	S7-31xT	S7-1500 / S7-1500T			
Single-axis motion functions					
Enable/disable axis	MC_Power	MC_Power			
Home/set axis	MC_Home	MC_Home			
Stop axis and prevent new traversing jobs	MC_Stop	[Not available]			
Normal stop	MC_Halt	MC_Halt			
Superimposed normal stop	MC_HaltSuperImposed	[Not available]			
Change data set	MC_ChangeDataSet	In the user program, several parameters can be changed synchronously with the motion control organization blocks.			
Move axis in jog mode	[Not available]	MC_MoveJog			
Absolute positioning	MC_MoveAbsolute	MC_MoveAbsolute			
Relative positioning	MC_MoveRelative	MC_MoveRelative			
Relative positioning to current target position	MC_MoveAdditive	This function can be implemented specific to an application in the user program.			
Superimposed positioning	MC_MoveSuperImposed	MC_MoveSuperImposed			
Motion with speed preset	MC_MoveVelocity	MC_MoveVelocity			
Move to fixed stop	MC_MoveToEndPos	MC_TorqueLimit			
Change encoder	[Not available]	MC_SetSensor			
Enable/disable torque limit	MC_SetTorqueLimit	MC_TorqueLimit			
Enable valve characteristic	MC_SetCharacteristics	[Not available]			
Force/pressure limiting	MC_ForceLimiting	[Not available]			
Force/pressure control	MC_ForceControl	[Not available]			
Gearing					
Start relative gearing	MC_GearIn	MC_GearIn			
Start absolute gearing		MC_GearInPos			

Table 2-2 Technology functions compared

2 Comparison between the CPU31xT and the S7-1500(T)

2.3 Technology functions compared

Technology function	S7-31xT	S7-1500 / S7-1500T
Stop gearing	MC_GearOut	Calling another motion function overrides the function.
Start superimposed gearing	MC_GearInSuperImposed	[Not available]
Stop superimposed gearing	MC_GearOutSuperImposed	[Not available]
Absolute phase shift between master axis and slave axis	MC_Phasing	MC_PhasingAbsolute
Relative phase shift between master axis and slave axis		MC_PhasingRelative
Superimposed phase shift between master axis and slave axis	MC_PhasingSuperImposed	[Not available]
Set active synchronous operation to "Simulation" mode	[Not available]	MC_SynchronizedMotion Simulation
Camming		
Start camming	MC_CamIn	MC_CamIn
Stop camming	MC_CamOut	Calling another motion function overrides the function.
Start superimposed camming	MC_CamInSuperImposed	[Not available]
Stop superimposed camming	MC_CamOutSuperImposed	[Not available]
Absolute phase shift between master axis and slave axis	MC_Phasing	[Not available]
Relative phase shift between master axis and slave axis		[Not available]
Superimposed phase shift between master axis and slave axis	MC_PhasingSuperImposed	[Not available]
Clear cams	MC_CamClear	Can be implemented in the user program by direct access to the cam (DB).
Add cam sector	MC_CamSectorAdd	Can be implemented in the user program by direct access to the cam (DB).
Interpolate cams	MC_CamInterpolate	MC_InterpolateCam
Read point on slave axis from cam	MC_GetCamPoint	MC_GetCamFollowing
Read point on master axis from cam		MC_GetCamLeading

2 Comparison between the CPU31xT and the S7-1500(T)

2.3 Technology functions compared

Technology function	S7-31xT	S7-1500 / S7-1500T		
Output cams and cam tracks				
Distance output cam	MC_CamSwitch	MC_OutputCam		
Time-based output cam	MC_CamSwitchTime	MC_OutputCam		
Cam track	MC_CamTrack	MC_CamTrack		
Read cam track	MC_ReadCamTrackData	Can be implemented in		
Write cam track	MC_WriteCamTrackData	the user program by direct access to the cam track (DB).		
Measuring inputs				
Single measurement job	MC_MeasuringInput	MC_MeasuringInput		
Cyclic measurement job		MC_MeasuringInput Cyclic		
Abort measurement job		MC_AbortMeasuringInput		
External encoders				
External encoder	MC_ExternalEncoder	The following functions can now also be applied to an external encoder: MC_Power MC_Reset MC_Home		
Path objects				
Position path object absolute along a linear path	MC_MoveLinearAbsolute	[Not available]		
Position path object relative along a linear path	MC_MoveLinearRelative	[Not available]		
Position path object absolute along a circular path	MC_MoveCircularAbsolute	[Not available]		
Position path object relative along a circular path	MC_MoveCircularRelative	[Not available]		
Move path object along circular paths	MC_MoveCircles	[Not available]		
Position path object absolute along a polynomial path	MC_MovePolynomAbsolute	[Not available]		
Position path object relative along a polynomial path	MC_MovePolynomRelative	[Not available]		
Move path object along interpolation point table	MC_MovePath	[Not available]		
Synchronize path object with conveyor belt	MC_GroupSyncConveyorBelt	[Not available]		
Configure offset between base coordinate system and object coordinate system	MC_SetCartesianTransform	[Not available]		

2.3 Technology functions compared

Technology function	S7-31xT	S7-1500 / S7-1500T
Set object coordinate system to new conveyor belt position	MC_RedefineTrackingPos	[Not available]
Prepare and load interpolation point data for path segment	MC_PathSelect	[Not available]
Stop path motion	MC_GroupStop	[Not available]
Interrupt path motion	MC_GroupInterrupt	[Not available]
Continue path motion	MC_GroupContinue	[Not available]
Monitor zones	MC_ZoneCheck	[Not available]
Basic functions		
Acknowledge error	MC_Reset	MC_Reset
Activate/deactivate technology object	MC_ActivateTO	[Not available]
Activate/deactivate DP slave	MC_ActivateDPSlave	[Not available]
Read parameters	MC_ReadSysParameter	[Not necessary]
Write parameters	MC_WriteParameter	[Not necessary]
Read technology I/O	MC_ReadPeriphery	[Not necessary]
Write technology I/O	MC_WritePeriphery	[Not necessary]
Read data record	MC_ReadRecord	[Not necessary]
Write data record	MC_WriteRecord	[Not necessary]
Read drive parameters	MC_ReadDriveParameter	This function can be
Write drive parameters	MC_WriteDriveParameter	Implemented specific to an application in the user program. For more information, please refer to Links & Literature \5\ of this document.

Note Chapter 5.2 of this documentation provides a detailed comparison of the PLCopen blocks and shows the differences between the individual function blocks.

3.1 Overview

3 Sample Migration

3.1 Overview

The examples provided in the following chapters give you an overview of how to migrate an existing SIMATIC S7-31xT user project to TIA Portal in order to use the user blocks of the previous project as the basis for a TIA Portal project with the SIMATIC S7-1500(T).

NOTICE Do not perform an uncontrolled migration of a user program!

Even if program parts and technology functions can be replaced by functions of the same name when migrating, this does not ensure the functional equality of the user program before and after the migration. Therefore, perform a comprehensive function test of your user program on the target machine after the migration.

3.1.1 Advantages

Migrating an existing SIMATIC S7-31xT user project to TIA Portal offers the following advantages:

- Transfer of the user blocks you have created, including all the necessary userdefined data types, to TIA Portal as a basis of development for your new TIA Portal project with the SIMATIC S7-1500(T).
- Transfer of the screens and functions of an included HMI as a basis of development for your new TIA Portal project.
- Time savings when establishing the basis of development for the new TIA Portal project.

3.1.2 Restrictions

Migrating an existing SIMATIC S7-31xT user project to TIA Portal involves the following restrictions:

- A migration of the full functionality of a user project with the SIMATIC S7-31xT to TIA Portal to the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) can currently not be ensured.
- Likewise, the functional equality of the technology functions of the SIMATIC S7-31xT and the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) cannot be ensured.
- Neither is it ensured that the block parameters of the technology functions of the SIMATIC S7-31xT and the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) are the same.
- Know-how protected blocks in the user project of the SIMATIC S7-31xT for which no password and no block source code exist cannot be migrated to TIA Portal.

If necessary, remove the blocks from the SIMATIC S7-31xT user project before the migration.

3.1 Overview

3.1.3 Requirement

To migrate a STEP 7 project in TIA Portal, the following requirements must be met in TIA Portal or on the PG/PC on which the migration is to be performed:

- In TIA Portal, the Migration function must be installed.
- For the migration, the complete software with which the STEP 7 project to be migrated was created must be installed on the PG/PC. The reason for this is that TIA Portal uses this software when migrating; therefore, this software must be installed on the PG/PC, including the required licenses.
- **Note** Migrating a project requires that the migration functionality of TIA Portal, STEP 7 V5.x, S7 Technology V4.x and, if necessary, WinCC flexible 2008 with the required service packs (SP) and hotfixes (HF) be installed on the PG/PC. Otherwise, the TIA Portal migration wizard cannot perform the migration and aborts the migration with an error message.
- **Note** If you want to perform a migration, it is recommended to install, if possible, TIA Portal on the PG/PC that was previously used for developing the STEP 7 projects for the SIMATIC 31xT.

3.1.4 Preparing the STEP 7 project

Before the migration in TIA Portal, the STEP 7 project should be prepared as described here.

First, make sure that all of the following requirements are met:

- The complete STEP 7 project is available for the migration, i.e., the project to be migrated contains all block sources and user-defined data types.
- The STEP 7 project does not contain any know-how protected blocks.
 - If the project contains know-how protected blocks, please remove their know-how protection before the migration.
 - For know-how protected blocks, please also make sure that after removing know-how protection, any block sources and user-defined data types that may be necessary are included in the STEP 7 project.

Before performing the migration in TIA Portal, the STEP 7 project should be compiled one more time in its entirety in the previous engineering system:

- In the STEP 7 V5.x block folder, check the consistency of all blocks by completely recompiling all blocks of the block folder.
- If the STEP 7 project contains an HMI, remove the temporary files from the project in WinCC flexible.
- In WinCC flexible, completely regenerate the HMI and save the changes to the STEP 7 project.

3.2 Step 1: Migrating the user project to TIA Portal

Note When checking the consistency or compiling the blocks in the STEP 7 V5.x block folder, warning messages occur when compiling the project's technology data blocks; however, these messages do not affect the subsequent migration to TIA Portal.

3.2 Step 1: Migrating the user project to TIA Portal

If all requirements are met on the PG/PC and the STEP 7 project to be migrated was prepared as described, you can start the migration in TIA Portal:

- 1. Start TIA Portal and open the Migrate project dialog.
- 2. Select the STEP 7 project to be migrated.
- 3. Select migration without hardware configuration.
- 4. Define the target project where you want to store the migrated data.
- 5. Start the migration.

Figure 3-1 Migrating the user project to TIA Portal



Note The migration of a user project with the SIMATIC S7-31xT to TIA Portal must be performed without a hardware migration. Therefore, uncheck "Include hardware configuration" before starting the migration.

The TIA Portal target project to which the user project is to be saved after the migration is created first.

3.2 Step 1: Migrating the user project to TIA Portal



Then the project data is exported from the source project.

Figure 3-3 Exporting project data

Migrate p	project		
Ø	9%	Exporting project data	
			Remaining time in seconds: 10
			Cancel

Finally, the project data is saved to the target project.

Figure 3-4 Saving data to target project



If errors or warnings have occurred during the migration, this is indicated by a message at the end of the process.





Refer to the migration log file for unusual activities that have occurred during the migration of the user project.

The following figure shows a migration log file. The message (6) indicates that block FB 509 was migrated without existing SCL source code and is therefore stored as a know-how protected block.

Figure 3-6 Migration log file

Lo	3				
1	Message	So to	?	Date	Time
1	✓ Station: SIMATIC 300(1)			12/10/2015	3:39:47 PM
Δ.	 Hardware configuration 			12/10/2015	3:39:47 PM
Δ.	The device "SIMATIC 300(1)" has been replaced by an unspecified CPU. Please specify this CPU.			12/10/2015	3:39:47 PM
0	The following STEP 7 versions were used for saving and compiling the stations: 5.4.2.0_16.6.0.1 5.4.3.1_3.4.0.1			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
Δ.	▼ PLC program			12/10/2015	3:39:47 PM
0	 Objects to be migrated 			12/10/2015	3:39:47 PM
0	Organization blocks: 2			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
0	Function blocks: 25			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
0	Data blocks: 26			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
0	Functions: 2			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
0	Data types: 14			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
0	Tags: 72			12/10/2015	3:39:48 PM
Δ.	CPU 317T-2 DPIFB509: The corresponding SCL source is missing. The block is migrated with know-how protection.	_		(6)/2015	3:39:49 PM
1	▼ Summary			10/2015	3:39:41 PM
0	Project exported with STEP 7 version V5.5 + SP4			12/10/2015	3:39:43 PM
Δ.	All PLCs have been replaced by unspecified CPUs. Please specify these CPUs again.		?	12/10/2015	3:39:52 PM

During the migration, the SIMATIC S7-31xT was replaced with an unspecified S7-300 CPU.

9 () Law project . X 10 (X 10) ± (* ±			Totally Integrated Automation PORTAL
Project tree	14		
Devices	and the second		
300	<u>비</u> 말		
• D Palletiz			
Add new device			
devices & networks			
* [OU 31712 DP [Unspecific CPU 57 300]			
Device configuration			
 W Program blocks 			the second se
 La recondición cojecta 			and the second
go External source sites			
 Carolings Carolings 			
Si Warth and Bore tables	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
Program info			
Bevice promidata			
C3 PLC alarms			
Text lists	No. And Annual States of the second states of the s		
Local modules			
Gommon data			
Courrentation settings			
Languages & resources	Party in the second		
Doline access			
Card Reader/USB memory			
	Incorporation (1999) Incorporation (1999) Magina prima Magina	Gene 7 Dene Terra Unicolis 3.93/2004 1.000015 3.93/2004 1.000015 3.9453/944 2.000015 3.9453/944	
> Details view			
Portal view El Overview			A Migration completed with warnings.

Figure 3-7 TIA Portal project after the migration

3.3 Step 2: Replacing the unspecified CPU

In the second step, replace the unspecified S7-300 CPU currently integrated in the TIA Portal project with a SIMATIC S7-1500 CPU.

When migrating the CPU, use the below criteria to choose between a SIMATIC S7-1500 and a SIMATIC S7-1500T:

 What technologies do you want to use in the user program? Chapter 2.2 of this documentation provides more information about the technologies integrated in the two CPU types.

- What axis quantity frameworks do you want to control using the CPU? The TIA Selection Tool and SIZER for Siemens Drives configuration tools help you answer this question. In the "Links & Literature" chapter of this documentation, you will find links to these two tools.
- What cycle times do you want to achieve in the user program? For more information, please refer to the manuals or technical specifications of the individual CPUs or the TIA Selection Tool. In the "Links & Literature" chapter, you will find the link to this tool. For a first rough approximation, you can start with the position controller cycle settings from the S7-300 CPU. However, motion control should not require more than 50% of the CPU computing power.
- What technology functions do you want to use in the user program? More information can be found in Chapter 2.3 or Chapter 5.2 of this documentation.

The CPU is replaced in the hardware configuration of TIA Portal with the aid of the CPU migration to S7-1500 function. This migrates the unspecified S7-300 CPU to a SIMATIC S7-1500 CPU.



Figure 3-8 CPU migration to S7-1500

Then the following selection dialog allows you to select the desired CPU; in this example: an S7-1516.

Figure 3-9	Target	CPU	selection	dialog
------------	--------	-----	-----------	--------

rrent device:	New device:	▼ Controllers
Unspecified CPU 300 ticle no.:: 6ES7 3XXX000X000X ersion:: ***	CPU 1516-3 PWDP Article no.: 6E57 516-3AN01-0 Version: V1.8 Description: CPU with display: work memory 1 M code and 5 M8 data; 10 ns bir instr time; 4-stage protection concept, h disred: Hogo control, Automotion CPU with display: work memory 1 M code and 5 M8 data; 10 ns bir instr time; 4-stage protection concept, h disred: Hogo control, Automotion counting measuring; integrated to supports MRIR.7 2 ports, MP; transp protocol TCPIP, 57 communication server, constant bus cycle time, ro 2nd interface: PROFINET IO controlle supports protocol TCPIP, 75 communication server, constant bus cycle time, ro 2nd interface: PROFINET Dasis server transport protocol TCPIP, Web server transport protocol TCPIP, Web server transport protocol TCPIP, Server (server) master, constant bus cycle time, ro	ABD Image: CPU 1511-1 PN CPU 1512-1 PN CPU 1512-2 PN CPU 1515-2 PN CPU 1517-3 PNIDP CPU 1517-3 PNIDP CPU 1518-4 PNIDP CPU SIRLUS CPU SIRLUS
mpatibility information		
Information		

Now an unspecified SIMATIC S7-300 CPU is migrated to a SIMATIC S7-1500(T) CPU.



Figure 3-10 Security note for testing the user program



PLC migration	
62%	Determine partially qualified DB accesses
	Remaining time in seconds: 9 Cancel

At the end of the migration, an error message is displayed. However, this is due to the fact that not all blocks of the user program, especially the technology data blocks of the technology objects used and various technology function blocks, can be applied to the user program of the S7-1500. The link in the info pane (1) for the migration log information allows you to display the exact reasons for the error message.

Figure 3-12 Migration completes with an error message



Figure 3-13 Display of the migration log information

og Ma		Co to 2		Data	Time		Licor	
	General	Go to :		12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM		User	
	The following blocks could not be migrated:			12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Avis X (DB3): The programming language used for block is not supported by the new		2	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Axis_X (DB3). The programming language used for block is not supported by the new		5	12/11/2015	0:07:11 AM			
	Avis_1 (DB4): The programming language used for block is not supported by the new		5	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Axis_Master (001). The programming language used for block is not supported by the.		5	12/11/2015	0.07.11 AM			
	Axis_VM (DB2). The programming language used for block is not supported by the new.		5	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Aus_2 (DBS). The programming language used for block is not supported by the new		5	12/11/2015	0.07.11 AM			
	hace (DB9). The programming language used for block is not supported by the new c.		5	12/11/2015	9.07.11 AM			
	Mic device (DBTO). The programming language used for block is not supported by the .		5	12/11/2015	9.07.11 AM			
	Cam_VM (DB12): The programming language used for block is not supported by the h.		-5-	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Cam_X (DB13): The programming language used for block is not supported by the ne		-5-	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Cam_Y (DB14): The programming language used for block is not supported by the ne		<u>_</u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	Cam_2 (DB15): The programming language used for block is not supported by the ne		<u>_</u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_Home (FB403): The block is know-how protected.		<u>_</u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_Halt (FB405): The block is know-how protected.		<u>_</u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_MoveAbsolute (FB410): The block is know-how protected.		<u>_</u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_MoveVelocity (FB414): The block is know-how protected.		<u>_</u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_WriteParameter (FB407): The block is know-how protected.		<u> </u>	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_CamIn (FB421): The block is know-how protected.		1	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_GetCamPoint (FB438): The block is know-how protected.		1	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	CamClear (FB581): The block is know-how protected.		7	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	CamInterpolate (FB582): The block is know-how protected.		7	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	CamSectorAdd (FB583): The block is know-how protected.		7	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_CalcCam (FB509): The block is know-how protected.		1	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_Power (FB401): The block is know-how protected.		7	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_Reset (FB402): The block is know-how protected.		- ? -	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_ReadSysParameter (FB406): The block is know-how protected.		- 7	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_CamClear (FB434): The block is know-how protected.		?	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_CamSectorAdd (FB435): The block is know-how protected.		?	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	MC_CamInterpolate (FB436): The block is know-how protected.		?	12/11/2015	9:07:11 AM			
	The start information of some OBs has changed.			12/11/2015	9:07:16 AM			
	PLC migration from CPU 317T-2 DP to PLC_1 finished with errors.			12/11/2015	9:07:56 AM			
≁	MoveCam (FB508)	×		12/11/2015	9:07:56 AM			
•	Check_Axes_and_Cams (FC505)	×		12/11/2015	9:07:56 AM			
					Properties	71. Info	P Diagnostics	
ien	eral Cross-references Compile		_		Toportioo		Co Diagnostico	
	Chow all marrager							
	Show an messages			(1)				
Me	ssage	Go to ?		ate	Time			
	Project closed.		/	12/11/2015	9:05:52 AM			
	Project Palletiz opened.	/		12/11/2015	9:05:59 AM			
				10/11/0015	0.07.56 444			

After selecting and replacing the CPU, the migrated user project looks as follows:

- The first folder (2) contains the migration source project with the unspecified S7-300 CPU.
 This folder can be deleted when the user program has been migrated completely and successfully.
- The second folder (3) contains the migration target project with the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) CPU.
 This folder is then used to perform the next steps necessary for migrating the user program. These steps are described in the following chapters.

3.4 Step 3: Generating technology objects



Figure 3-14 TIA Portal project after the migration

3.4 Step 3: Generating technology objects

Now you have to create the required technology objects such as axes, measuring inputs, cams and output cams in the migration target project.

The technology objects, especially the axes, must be configured based on the mechanical conditions of the machine or plant. The instructions given in the S7-1500(T) technology manual should be followed.

Note When creating technology objects in the migration target project, it may be useful to use the configuration of the technology objects in STEP 7 V5.x as a template or setting aid and apply the values set in this configuration.

3.5 Step 4: Customizing the program

To complete the migration of the user program, make the following changes in the user program:

- Integrate the technology objects generated in the previous chapter into the user program.
- Replace or integrate the required technology function blocks or PLCopen function blocks into the user program.
 Pay particular attention to a potentially changed meaning of the blocks' input parameters or block modes and customize the user program accordingly.
 In some cases, it is also necessary to replace technology functions that are not available in the S7-1500(T) with application solutions.

3.6 Step 5: Customizing the HMI

- Carefully check the programming and functionality of the remaining program parts of the user program.
- Compile the complete user program in the target project.

NOTICE Do not perform an uncontrolled migration of a user program!

Even if program parts and technology functions can be replaced by functions of the same name when migrating, this does not ensure the functional equality of the user program before and after the migration. Therefore, perform a comprehensive function test of your user program on the target machine after the migration.

3.6 Step 5: Customizing the HMI

Finally, customize any existing HMI. If the HMI was successfully migrated to TIA Portal, it is normally sufficient to reconnect the HMI tags to the appropriate tags from the user program and recompile the entire HMI project.

Note It is recommended to implement the tag connection between the HMI and the user program via a central global data block in the user program.

4.1 Transferring axis objects to user FBs

4 Programming Tips

The aim of this chapter is to provide support in creating the program using selected examples.

4.1 Transferring axis objects to user FBs

If you have to control multiple axes in an automation project in a SIMATIC controller, it is usually helpful to structure and encapsulate the functions of the individual axes in a higher-level function block.

The following chapters show you how to transfer an Axis technology object to a self-created function block via an input parameter in order to use the object in this block in interaction with the technology functions that are possibly called as a multi-instance in that place.

4.1.1 Layered concept of the Axis technology object

In terms of functionality, the Axis technology objects build on each other. This is also referred to as a layered concept of the Axis technology objects in the SIMATIC S7-1500 / S7-1500T.

The individual technology objects build on each other as shown in the below figure.

Figure 4-1 Layered concept of the Axis technology objects





Technology object	Data type	Description
Axis base type	TO_Axis	This data type forms the basis of all Axis technology objects.
Speed Axis	TO_SpeedAxis	Considering the dynamic response settings, the Speed Axis technology object calculates speed setpoints and outputs them to the drive. All motions of the speed axis are speed- controlled.

4 Programming Tips

4.1 Transferring axis objects to user FBs

Technology object	Data type	Description
Positioning Axis	TO_PositioningAxis	Considering the dynamic response settings, the Positioning Axis technology object calculates position setpoints and outputs appropriate speed setpoints to the drive. All motions of the positioning axis are position-controlled. For absolute positioning, the Positioning Axis technology object must know the physical position.
Synchronous Axis	TO_SynchronousAxis	The Synchronous Axis technology object contains all the functions of the Positioning Axis technology object. In addition, a synchronous axis can follow the motions of a master axis. The synchronous operation relationship between master axis and slave axis is defined by a function f(x).

This layered concept is also reflected in the structure of the technology data block of the technology objects of the SIMATIC S7-1500 / S7-1500T. To illustrate this, the following figure shows a technology data block of a synchronous axis.

- The TO_Axis data type forms the base type of the technology object; however, it does not provide any other functionality in the technology data block of the axis.
- The TO_SpeedAxis data type that has the functionality of a speed axis is based on this data type. This data type is also used to display all parameters of a speed axis in the technology data block, for example the current setpoint velocity (Velocity), the current setpoint acceleration (Acceleration) or the current actual speed of the motor (Actual Speed).

In addition, this data type includes all parameters for configuring an axis as all axis types are based on a speed axis, i.e., open-loop speed control or closed-loop speed control by a drive.

- Then the TO_PositioningAxis data type that has the functionality of a positioning axis is based on this data type. In the technology data block, this data type provides all information about a positioning axis such as the setpoint position for a positioning operation (Position), the actual axis position (Actual Position), the actual axis velocity (Actual Velocity) and the actual axis acceleration (Actual Acceleration).
 In addition, this data type includes all related parameters of a positioning axis such as encoder data (Sensor), modulo settings (Modulo), travel path settings (PositionLimits_SW, PositionLimits_HW, Homing), position control settings (PositionControl) and the associated monitoring (FollowingError, PositionMonitoring, StandstillSignal).
- Finally, the technology data block includes, of course, the TO_SynchronousAxis data type of the actual synchronous axis. This data type includes all the data types listed above; however, it does not provide any further axis information. As additional information, the Synchronous Axis data type contains status data on the current synchronous operation with a master axis.

4.1 Transferring axis objects to user FBs

	Jyi	ICI.	101	iot	12/12/12/1			
		Na	me			Data type	Start value	-
1		•	Ba	se		TO_PositioningAxis		_]
2		•	•	Ba	se	TO_SpeedAxis		
3			•	-	Base	TO_Axis		
4				•	Input			
5				ŀ.	Output			
6				•	InOut			
7				•	Static			
8			•		Input			
9			•		Output			
10			•		InOut			
11			•	•	Static			
12				•	Velocity	LReal	0.0	
13				•	Acceleration	LReal	0.0	
14	-			•	ActualSpeed	LReal	0.0	- TO SpeedAxis
15				•	 Actor 	Struct		
16				•	LoadGear	Struct		
17				•	DynamicLimits	Struct		
18				•	DynamicDefaults	Struct		
19				•	 Override 	Struct		
20				•	StatusDrive	Struct		
21				•	StatusWord	DWord	16#0	
22				•	ErrorWord	DWord	16#0	
23				•	ErrorDetail	Struct		
24				•	WarningWord	DWord	16#0	
25				•	 ControlPanel 	Struct		
26	-			•	InternalToTrace	Array[14] of Struct		
27				•	Simulation	Struct		
28	-	•		In	put			
29		•		0	utput			
30	-	•		In	Out			
31		•	•	St	atic			
32			•		Position	LReal	0.0	
33			•		ActualPosition	LReal	0.0	
34			•		ActualVelocity	LReal	0.0	
35			•		ActualAcceleration	LReal	0.0	
36			•	•	Sensor	Array[11] of Struct		
37			•	•	Mechanics	Struct		
38			-	•	Properties	Struct		
39			•	•	Modulo	Struct		
40			-	•	PositionLimits_SW	Struct		
41			•	•	PositionLimits_HW	Struct		
42			-	•	Homing	Struct		
43			•	•	PositionControl	Struct		
44			•	•	FollowingError	Struct		
45			•	٠	PositioningMonitoring	Struct		
46			•	•	StandstillSignal	Struct		
47	-		•	•	StatusPositioning	Struct		
48			•	•	StatusSensor	Array[11] of Struct		
49	-		In	put				
50			0	utpu	ut			
51	-		In	Out				
52		•	St	atic				
53		•	•	St	atusSynchronizedMotion	Struct		
54	-				ActualMaster	DB_ANY	0	

Figure 4-2 Layered concept using the example of the technology DB of a synchronous axis

4.1.2 Transferring axis types to user function blocks

If you want to structure a program, it is generally useful to encapsulate the functions of individual axes in a user function block. It should be possible to transfer the Axis technology object to the user function block via an input parameter.

4.1 Transferring axis objects to user FBs

To achieve this, create an appropriate parameter in the user function block's interface definition. Manually set the parameter data type to the appropriate axis type to be transferred by manually entering one of the following data types in the parameter's data type settings:

- For a speed axis, enter the TO_SpeedAxis data type.
- For a positioning axis, enter the TO_PositioningAxis data type.
- For a synchronous axis, enter the TO_SynchronousAxis data type.

When selecting the correct data type, also pay attention to the technology functions included in the user function block. Select the data type such that it corresponds to the most significant data type of the technology functions used. When, for example, the MC_MoveAbsolute technology function that requires the TO_PositioningAxis axis data type is used in the user function block, the function block's input parameter must be at least of the TO_PositioningAxis or TO_SynchronousAxis type.

Figure 4-3 Transferring axis types to user block



Note The data type of the input parameter for transferring a technology object to a user function block must be entered manually in order to use it in the function block. It is not possible to directly select the data type from the drop-down list.

Г

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

For structured programming or encapsulating the technological functions, you can also transfer the other available technology objects to a function block via input parameters.

The following table shows the required data types of the input parameters for the respective technology object.

Technology object	Data type	Description
Cam	TO_Cam	The Cam technology object defines a transfer function $y = f(x)$. On a unit- neutral basis, this transfer function describes the dependence of an output variable on an input variable, e.g. the position of a master axis relative to a slave axis. A Cam technology object can be used multiple times. The cam's transfer function can be composed of individual polynomial
		segments and/or defined by individual interpolation points of an interpolation point table.
Output Cam	TO_OutputCam	The Output Cam technology object generates switching signals depending on the position of an axis or external encoder. The switching states can be evaluated in the user program and connected to digital outputs.
		You can define one output cam per technology object.
		If necessary, assign the technology object to an Axis technology object when inserting into the user program or before compiling.
Cam Track	TO_CamTrack	The Cam Track technology object generates a switching signal

Table 4-2 Data types of the other technology objects

sequence depending on the position of an axis or external encoder. A cam track can consist of up to 32 single output cams and be output to an output. The switching states can be evaluated in the user program or connected to digital outputs. If necessary, assign the technology object to an Axis technology object when inserting into the user program

or before compiling.

4 Programming Tips

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

Technology object	Data type	Description		
Measuring Input	TO_MeasuringInput	When there is a signal change at the measuring input, the Measuring Input technology object detects the actual position of an axis or external encoder.		
		If necessary, assign the technology object to an Axis technology object when inserting into the user program or before compiling.		
External Encoder	TO_ExternalEncoder	The External Encoder technology object detects a position and provides it to the controller. The actual position detected by the external encoder can be used, for example, for the following functions:		
		 Measured-value acquisition by a measuring input. 		
		Position-dependent generation of switching signals and switching signal sequences by output cams and cam track with actual value reference.		
		 As a master value for a synchronous axis (S7-1500T only). 		

4.2.1 Cam technology object

The Cam technology object provides a unit-neutral transfer function y = f(x) between an input variable x and an output variable y. For camming between two axes, for example, the master axis position is the input variable x while the slave axis position as the output variable y results from the cam's transfer function.

Figure 4-4 Cam as a transfer function



The cam's transfer function can be generated in the controller in two different ways:

• During the engineering phase of the user program in TIA Portal. To this end, TIA Portal provides a Cam Editor with a comprehensive range of functions. It provides helpful support in entering and optimizing the transfer function based on user-definable criteria.

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

• During user program runtime in the controller by the user program itself. The cam data of the transfer function can be specified or changed by the user program directly in the technology data block of the technology object.



The cam data of the transfer function can also be defined in two ways during both the engineering phase using the Cam Editor and during runtime by the user program:

- As an interpolation point table by defining the pairs of values (x, y) for the input and output variable and the associated interpolation rule between the individual pairs of values. The following interpolation options are available:
 - Linear (connecting the interpolation points with a straight line)
 - Bezier spline (B-spline)
 - Cubic spline (C-spline)
- As a 6th order polynomial by defining the individual polynomial coefficients and any trigonometric (sine) part and the range of validity of the polynomial relative to the input variable.

The cam data of the transfer function can also be defined segment by segment as an interpolation point table in some cases and as a polynomial in other cases. If you want to define the cam data at runtime, two different tables are available in the technology data block for this purpose. One table for the interpolation points and one table for entering the polynomial segments. Do not forget to enable the individual table entries with the appropriate valid bit. 4.2 Transferring other technology objects

Figure 4-6	Technology data	a block of the cam
------------	-----------------	--------------------

	Ca	m									
		Na	ame	•	Data type	Start value	Retain	Accessible f	Writa	Visible in	Setpoint
1	-00	₽	Ba	ase	TO_Object			V	V	V	
2			In	iput							
3	-		0	utput							
4	-00		In	Out							
5	-00	•	St	tatic							
6			•	InterpolationSettings	TO_Cam_Struct_Int			~	V	V	
7				StatusCam	TO Cam Struct St			~		V	
8	-00		•	Point	Array[11000] of T			~	~	V	
9	-00	•	Þ	ValidPoint	Array[11000] of B			~	~	V	
10			•	Segment	Array[150] of TO			~	V	V	
11			Þ	ValidSegment	Array[150] of Bool			~	~	V	
12		•	-	StatusWord	DWord	16#0		~		V	
13		•		ErrorWord	DWord	16#0		~		V	
14		•	•	ErrorDetail	TO_Struct_ErrorDet			~		V	
15				WarningWord	DWord	16#0		~		V	

- **Note** The cam data entered using the Cam Editor during the engineering phase is also stored in the technology object's data block in the appropriate tables. In these tables, the data can be read or changed during user program runtime.
- **Note** Before its first use in a user program, the Cam technology object must be interpolated. In this context, it is irrelevant whether the cam was created in the user program at runtime or whether it was created and downloaded using TIA Portal.

4.2.2 Output Cam technology object

The Output Cam technology object generates switching signals depending on the position of an axis or external encoder.

When defining the output cam, you can choose between two output cam types:

- Distance output cam Start and end, i.e. the activation and deactivation position of the output cam, are each defined by a position value of the assigned axis.
- Time-based output cam

The start of the output cam is defined by a position value of the assigned axis. The end or activation duration of the output cam is defined by a time value. Passing the defined start position starts switching signal output of the output cam. In this context, the direction of motion of the assigned axis is irrelevant. For this reason, the position of time-based output cams is not, as is the case with distance output cams, clearly defined in the position range of the assigned axis. Depending on the direction of motion, the output cam can be to the left or right of the defined start position.

In addition, you can define the evaluation of the axis position of the assigned axis for the output cam. The cam can be output either relative to the axis setpoint or relative to the current axis position. If switching signal output is relative to the current axis position, a suitable hysteresis should always be defined in the output cam's advanced settings to prevent the switching signal from toggling in the range of the output cam's start and end point. Note

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

Figure 4-7 Output Cam technology object

		PLC	•	
	User program	Technology object axis	Technology object output cam	
Output cam type				
		Oistance output cam	Switch-on ran	ge 🔸
		 Time-based output cam 		
		0		
Output cam referenc	e	0	-	
Output cam referenc	e	 Position setpoint 	Start position	End posit
Output cam referenc	e	 Position setpoint Actual position 	Start position	End posit
Output cam referenc Measuring units	e	Position setpoint Actual position	Start position	End posit
Output cam referenc Measuring units	e Measuring unit position:	Position setpoint Actual position mm m The me or t	start position ermeasuring unit depend asuring unit of the assig the assigned external en	End posit
Output cam referenc Measuring units	e Measuring unit position:	Position setpoint Actual position mm m m m m r	start position emeasuring unit depend assuring unit of the assig the assigned external en	End position the ned axis icoder.

Note High-precision output of output cam switching signals can be achieved by using the TM Timer technology modules on the ET 200SP / ET 200MP distributed I/O system.

4.2.3 Cam Track technology object

The Cam Track technology object generates a switching signal sequence depending on the position of an axis or external encoder. A cam track can consist of up to 32 single output cams and be output to an output.

Here, just as with the Output Cam technology object, you can choose between the distance output cam and time-based output cam types and the setpoint and actual value axis reference of the assigned axis. However, the settings can only be made for all output cams of the cam track.

In addition, the cam track can also be homed to a defined position of the assigned axis. In this process, the cam track is defined with a user-definable track length starting at position zero. Using the home position, position zero can then be assigned to the cam track of a defined axis position.
4.2 Transferring other technology objects



Figure 4-8 Mapping the cam track to a defined axis range

In the cam track's advanced settings, a table allows you to additionally check the settings of the cam track's individual output cams.

Output cam	Valid	Start position	Start position		End position	
1		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	^
2		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	Γ
3		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
4		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
5		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
6		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
7		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
8		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	L
9		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
10		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
11		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
12		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
13		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
14		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
15		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
16		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
17		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
18		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
19		0.0	mm	0.0	mm	
20		0.0		0.0		-

	Ale a shaut au a			the alteriated and the	
INATININA	the efart and	1 ANA AT TNA	cam track s	Individual	outrout came
	the start and		Carri li ach a	muniuuuu	

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

4.2.4 Measuring Input technology object

When there is a signal change at the measuring input, the Measuring Input technology object detects the actual position of an axis or external encoder.

As a measuring input, the following input types can be defined at the measuring input:

Measuring using TM Timer DIDQ

Technology module of the ET 200SP / ET 200MP distributed I/O system for high-precision measurements. Measured-value acquisition is implemented with the aid of time stamps and output on the technology function used for measured-value acquisition as a high-precision position value.

- Measuring using SINAMICS measuring input
 Use of an input on the control unit of the SINAMICS drive system that can be
 parameterized in the drive as a measuring input or a technology module on the
 SINAMICS drive system. This, too, allows high-precision measurements. Here,
 too, measured-value acquisition is implemented with the aid of time stamps
 and output on the technology function used for measured-value acquisition as
 a high-precision position value.
- Measuring using PROFIdrive telegram
 When measuring using the PROFIdrive telegram, the measuring input is
 connected directly to the drive unit and the measurement is implemented in the
 drive. Using the PROFIdrive telegram, the drive or encoder module directly
 returns the detected position value to the technology object.
 When measuring using the PROFIdrive telegram, only one measuring input for
 an actual value or encoder in the PROFIdrive telegram can be active at a time.
 However, not more than two measuring inputs can be configured for an actual
 value or encoder in the PROFIdrive telegram.

Figure 4-10 Selecting the signal input for the measuring input

Input measuring input	
Measuring input type Measuring using TM Timer D Measuring using SINAMICS Measuring using PROFIdrive	DIDQ measuring input e telegram (drive or external encoder)
Measuring input: Correction time for the measuring signal:	Select measuring inputs 0.0 ms Delay times can be corrected in the correction time * these can occur directly in the measuring input, for example, times for the mechanical deflection of the measuring input or times for the generation of the measuring signal prior to input at measuring module; * switching times in the detection system, e.g., filter times at the input.

Note

Using the Measuring Input technology object, you can also perform measurements on virtual axes. However, the "Measuring using PROFIdrive telegram" input type cannot be used for this purpose.

The measuring input's advanced settings allow you to make various compensation settings for the measuring input signal to increase the accuracy of the measurements taken. The time of measurement is corrected during this process.

4.2 Transferring other technology objects

Corrections can be necessary, for example, in the following cases:

- Consideration of times for mechanical deflection of the measuring input.
- Consideration of times for generating the measuring signal in front of the input on the measurement module, for example the dead time of a photoelectric barrier or similar times.
- Consideration of filter times at the measuring signal input or filter times for the measuring inputs on a SINAMICS drive unit.



Adjustment for activation time of the measuring range	
The measuring range is managed in the controller and is activated proactively at the measuring input technology object with an activation time determined by the system. Here you can adjust the activation time with an additional time input.	
Adjustment for activation of measuring range: 0.0 ms	
Taking into consideration the current system settings, the result is:	
Time from output of a MC_MeasuringInput job until measuring event detection becomes effective: 8.0 ms	
Minimum time after measuring event until measured value is available in the controller (measuring of one edge):	
Minimum time after measuring event until measured value is available in the controller (measuring of two edges): 8.0 ms	

Note

The parameterized correction times are always included in measured-value acquisition. This applies to both measured-value acquisition using time stamps and direct measured-value acquisition in the drive using the PROFIdrive telegram.

By selecting the suitable technology function for the measuring input, you can choose between the following two measurement types:

- Single measurement using MC_MeasuringInput One measurement job allows edge-precise acquisition of up to two measured values. The measurement can be performed for two rising edges, two falling edges or one rising and one falling edge each.
- Cyclic measurement using MC_MeasuringInputCyclic
 Cyclic measurement allows edge-precise acquisition of up to two measured values in each servo clock cycle.
 In this mode, however, prompt processing in each servo clock cycle must be ensured in the user program; otherwise, the measured values could be overwritten by the MC_MeasuringInputCyclic technology function in the next servo clock cycle and would therefore be lost.
- **Note** Cyclic measurement can only be used in conjunction with measured-value acquisition using time stamps. This mode also requires that measured-value acquisition be connected, e.g. the drive or distributed I/O system, using isochronous data exchange (IRT).

4.2.5 External Encoder technology object

The External Encoder technology object detects a position and provides it to the controller.

The external encoder has almost the same setting options as the measurement system of an Axis technology object.

Note An external encoder cannot be used for position control of an axis, i.e., for integration into the technology object's position control loop.

4.3 Creating a cam with the editor

The aim of this chapter is to provide a brief introduction to using the TIA Portal Cam Editor. This should enable you to create a desired cam as quickly as possible or create a basis for further editing and optimizing the cam.

First set the definition range for the master axis and the slave axis in the cam properties in the general profile settings.



Figure 4-12 Setting the definition range of the cam

Note To have the greatest possible range for editing the cam in the Cam Editor, it is recommended to minimize the cam elements overview table. The necessary settings can be made in the properties of the individual elements.

The next step allows you to roughly distribute, in the cam's canvas, the exactly defined motion segments (work segments) of the slave axis, e.g. dwell ranges, i.e., zero speed ranges of the slave axis or 1:1 synchronous operation ranges between master axis and slave axis, as a 45° line in the cam definition range.

The desired line type can be selected in the top part of the canvas for the cam.



Figure 4-13 Entering the cam's "work segments"

Note At this point of the cam definition, a rough distribution regarding the position and order of the known motion segments is perfectly sufficient.

The motion segments are precisely adjusted and defined in the next step. In the cam element's Properties dialog, this is done individually for each cam element.

Note The inserted cam sectors are automatically inserted by the Cam Editor based on the set conditions.

The editor's default settings are normally sufficient for a first cam development. Elements added automatically will be optimized in a later step. The basic settings for automatically added elements can be changed in the Properties dialog in Default optimization settings and System interpolation.

Now any motion segment inserted manually can be clicked in the Cam Editor's canvas and the element's exact position can be set in the Properties dialog of this cam element.

This exactly aligns and arranges the precisely defined motion segments of the slave axis within the cam. Areas where an exact correlation between the motion of master axis and slave axis is not required are closed via the automatically added elements of the Cam Editor.



Figure 4-14 Precise adjustment of the individual cam sectors

Note

Warning symbols on the cam's automatically added elements indicate a violation of the general optimization settings in Default optimization settings.

In the last step, the user clicks the motion segments automatically inserted by the Cam Editor and makes the interpolation settings for these motion segments such that the Cam Editor no longer displays warning messages or the discontinuities in the appropriate points are accepted.

For a first approximation for creating the cam, it is normally sufficient to change the optimization method setting to VDI-based optimization.

Of course, other settings specified in greater detail for the cam element's interpolation settings can be made in the Properties dialog of each motion segment. These settings allow the user to further adjust and optimize the cam. If necessary, additional cam elements, as shown in the first step, can be added to the cam to adjust the cam to the desired motional sequence.





Finally, the two buttons at the top end of the cam canvas allow the user to display the derivatives of the defined cam. Using these graphs, the velocity, acceleration and jerk of the slave axis can be controlled relative to the master axis. If there are any anomalies, the defined cam can be further optimized, if necessary.



Note To check limit violations, the dynamic properties of existing axes can be copied to the editor by a key press or specified manually in the Profile properties dialog in Effective runtime curves to display the derivatives and indicate dynamics violations.

In the Graphical view properties dialog, Charts and curves, the display of the additional dynamic curves can be further influenced or hidden.

4.4 Notes on using technology objects

4.4.1 Interpolating a cam

Before its first use in a user program, the Cam technology object must be interpolated using the MC_InterpolateCam technology function. In this context, it is irrelevant whether the cam was created in the user program at runtime or whether it was created and downloaded using TIA Portal.

4.4.2 Scaling a cam

When starting camming using the MasterScaling and SlaveScaling parameters, the MC_CamIn technology function allows you to scale the defined cam in the x- and y-direction.

The following table shows an example of the effects of the two parameters, MasterScaling and SlaveScaling, on the cam.

4 Programming Tips

4.4 Notes on using technology objects

	SlaveScaling = 1.0	SlaveScaling = 2.0
MasterScaling = 1.0	Even ats	Eres ats
MasterScaling = 2.0	Erre at	Ern ats

Table 4-3 Scaling a cam

Furthermore, the ApplicationMode parameter allows you to define the behavior of the slave axis outside the definition range of the cam, i.e., when the master axis exits the master axis position range defined in the cam or by the scaling:

• ApplicationMode = 0

The cam is executed only once. If the master axis exits the definition range of the cam, camming is stopped.

This mode can be used, for example, if the motion defined in the cam is to be executed only once but in its entirety.

• ApplicationMode = 1

The cam is appended in the master axis direction. The master axis can therefore no longer exit the definition range of the cam. To avoid setpoint jumps on the slave axis, it should be ensured, in this mode, that the cam continues steadily at the start and end (slope of the curve) and that the slave axis position matches at the cam's start and end point.

ApplicationMode = 2 The cam is appended in the master axis direction and in the slave axis direction.

Here, too, it has to be ensured that the cam continues steadily, especially regarding the slope of the curve at the start and end point.

The following figures illustrate the cam synchronization behavior with the different settings of the ApplicationMode parameter:

	Behavior	Comment
ApplicationMode = 0 (single)		The cam is executed only once. If the master axis exits the definition range of the cam, camming is stopped.
ApplicationMode = 1 (cyclic)	Ere ati	The cam is appended in the master value direction. The master axis can therefore no longer exit the definition range of the cam. Pay attention to any setpoint jumps on the slave axis!
ApplicationMode = 2 (cyclically appending)		The cam is appended in the master axis direction and in the slave axis direction. Ensure that the slope of the curve continues steadily at the start and end point!

Table 4-4 Settings of the ApplicationMode parameter

4.4.3 Synchronization using a cam

The MC_CamIn technology function starts camming between a master axis and a slave axis with a cam as the transfer function.

The following explanations apply to master value-related synchronization of the slave axis with the master axis as can be achieved by the SyncProfileReference = 1 parameter setting on the MC_CamIn technology function.



Figure 4-17 MC_CamIn technology function

The MasterSyncPosition parameter defines the position within the cam, relative to the cam start, starting from which the master axis and the slave axis of camming are to move synchronously with one another.

If the cam is to be run starting with the cam start, set the value 0.000 for the MasterSyncPosition parameter.

Leading synchronization of the slave axis with the master axis with the synchronous position, relative to the master axis, specified in the MasterSyncPosition parameter. When the synchronous position is reached, the two axes move synchronously with one another.





Using the MasterOffset parameter, you can offset the master values (x-values) of the cam in the coordinate system of the master axis. Using the SlaveOffset parameter, you can offset the slave values (y-values) of the cam in the coordinate system of the slave axis.

This moves the cam defined on an absolute basis to the position range required for your application.





For cams that do not start at position 0.000 in the definition range of the cam, there is a special aspect regarding the calculation of the MasterSyncPosition parameter. Here, too, the value of the MasterSyncPosition parameter represents the distance between the cam start and the synchronous position on the cam. In simple terms, the MasterSyncPosition parameter can always be calculated using the following formula:



Where:

- X_{Sync} is the master axis position in the cam definition range, starting from which master axis and slave axis are to move synchronously with one another.
- X_{Start} is the start position of the cam in the cam definition range.

Figure 4-20 Synchronizing with a cam that does not start at 0



Finally, the following section presents a brief calculation example of the above topic:

- 1. The following parameters are preset in the application:
 - Start of cam in definition range X_{Start}: 30.000
 - Synchronous position within cam X_{Sync}: 100.000
 - MasterOffset of cam in master axis system: 50.00
- Using the above formula, the MasterSyncPosition parameter can then be calculated as follows:
 - MasterSyncPosition = X_{Sync} X_{Start} = 100.000 30.000 = 70.000
- 3. This results in the following correlations on the master axis:
 - Due to the cam offset using MasterOffset, the cam start in the coordinate system of the master axis is at the following master axis position: (MasterOffset) + X_{Start} = 50.000 + 30.000 = 80.000
 - Due to the cam offset using MasterOffset, the slave axis moves synchronously with the master axis starting from the following master axis position: (MasterOffset) + X_{Sync} = 50.000 + 100.000 = 150.000

4.4.4 Synchronization of gearing at a standstill

If the two axes, master axis and slave axis, to be synchronized via gearing are at a standstill, some specifics need to be considered when synchronizing the two axes.

Basically, the aim is to synchronize the axes via their setpoints or actual values. The setpoints represent values of the control loop of the two axes that were calculated in the controller and, at a standstill of the two axes, therefore represent a constant value. The actual values depend on the actual axis motion of the

respective axis and represent the encoder feedback of the axis to the control loop. Therefore, the position values provided to the system by the actual values for the synchronization are a little less stable than the ones provided by setpoint coupling. This means that additional position value filter options provided by the system should be used for this coupling type.

MC_GearIn technology function

Due to the relative synchronization of master axis and slave axis using the MC_GearIn technology function, the position of the two axes is not relevant to the synchronization. Therefore, synchronous operation of the two axes starts directly when starting the MC_GearIn technology function. Via the InGear output, the block returns this state to the user program.

Figure 4-21 MC_GearIn technology function



- **Note** The MC_GearIn technology function is the easiest way to synchronize two axes in gearing.
- **Note** In the synchronized state, the behavior of the two technology functions for relative synchronous operation, MC_GearIn, and absolute synchronous operation, MC_GearInPos, is completely identical.

MC_GearInPos technology function

Alternatively, absolute synchronization of master axis and slave axis via the MC_GearInPos technology function can be used to synchronize the two axes. Before triggering the synchronization process, the following requirements must be met:

- Specify the current master axis position at the MasterSyncPosition parameter. If necessary, move the axis to the appropriate position using single-axis functions.
- Specify the current slave axis position at the SlaveSyncPosition parameter. If necessary, move the axis to the appropriate position using single-axis functions.

If these requirements are met and the synchronization process is started by a rising edge at the Execute input, absolute gearing between master axis and slave axis is immediately synchronized.





- **Note** If the slave axis is not at the exact synchronous position specified at the SlaveSyncPosition parameter, the master axis must first pass the position defined at the MasterSyncPosition parameter to start the synchronization process and therefore a motion of the slave axis.
- **Note** In the synchronized state, the behavior of the two technology functions for relative synchronous operation, MC_GearIn, and absolute synchronous operation, MC_GearInPos, is completely identical.

4.4.5 Synchronization of camming at a standstill

If the two axes, master axis and slave axis, to be synchronized via camming are at a standstill, some specifics need to be considered when synchronizing the two axes.

If synchronous operation is to be active immediately, the following requirements must be met before triggering the synchronization process via a cam:

- The master axis is at a standstill. If necessary, use single-axis commands to move the master axis to the desired position before triggering the synchronization process. The master axis position must be in the cam definition range.
- With the aid of the MC_GetCamFollowingValue technology function, the cam
 position of the slave axis can be determined based on the current master axis
 position.
- Then use single-axis commands to move the slave axis to the determined position. The slave axis, too, must then be at a standstill at this position.

- Relative to the current positions of the master axis and the slave axis at a standstill, the parameters of the MC_CamIn technology function now have to be calculated as follows:
 - MasterOffset = (current position of master axis) (cam position of master axis)
 - SlaveOffset = (current position of slave axis) (determined cam position of slave axis)
 - MasterSyncPosition = (current position of master axis) (MasterOffset) (start position of cam)
- A rising edge at the Execute input of the MC_CamIn technology function starts the cam synchronization of the two axes and immediately synchronizes the master axis with the slave axis.
- **Note** When performing actual value coupling of camming, a system-internal hysteresis is also available here. In addition, you can parameterize a position filter, a velocity filter and a hysteresis for actual value extrapolation.

4.4.6 Changing a cam on-the-fly

If you want to change the active cam in an existing camming process, this can be achieved by once again calling the MC_CamIn technology function.

The load position of the new cam is defined at the MC_CamIn technology function using the MasterSyncPosition parameter. The transition between the two cams should be as continuous as possible. In this case, the synchronization parameters of the technology function should be set as follows:

- Synchronization over a master value distance: The master value distance set at the MasterStartDistance parameter should be as short as possible to achieve a direct transition from one cam to the next.
- Synchronization based on dynamic response parameters: The selected dynamic response parameters, Velocity, Acceleration, Deceleration and Jerk, should be as high as possible to complete the synchronization process with the new cam as quickly as possible.

4.4.7 Canceling a synchronous operation

An independent technology function for canceling a synchronous operation function is no longer available. Therefore, an active synchronous operation has to be canceled in a different manner.

If master axis and slave axis are in synchronous operation, i.e. both axes have already been synchronized, the following options are available for creating the active synchronous operation:

- Disable the slave axis using the MC_Power technology function.
- Start a motion job on the slave axis. For example, if the synchronous operation is to be canceled at a standstill without a motion of the slave axis, a motion job with the current slave axis position as the target position or an MC_Halt command can be started.

If the technology function to synchronize a slave axis with a master axis has already been issued while the two axes are not yet in synchronous operation, this synchronization job can only be canceled by another synchronous operation command, for example by transmitting a relative gearing command to a stopped master axis and then sending an MC_Halt command to the slave axis in the synchronized state.

Note Influencing the master axis does normally not affect active synchronous coupling to the slave axis.

Note The MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation technology function allows you to maintain an active synchronous operation between a master axis and a slave axis even beyond disabling or moving the slave axis. The synchronous operation remains active for the controller as long as the MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation technology function remains enabled.

To avoid a jump of the slave axis when disabling the MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation technology function, the slave axis, at this time, should be at the same position it was when the MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation technology function was started.

4.5 **Programming functions for multiple axes**

In the SIMATIC S7-31xT, the axes were represented by the number of the technology data blocks. It was possible to assign axes to technology functions simply by transferring the integer value of the technology data block number. However, access to technology object data such as the axis position was possible only by an offset in the technology data block.

In the SIMATIC S7-1500(T), by contrast, the technology objects are addressed symbolically. Symbolic programming considerably facilitates program generation when accessing technology object data and thus avoids programming errors by better readability of the program. Using technology functions generates an unambiguous assignment to the technology object by the symbolic name of the object.

However, when using large quantity frameworks on technology objects, this can easily involve considerable effort when generating the program. To avoid this problem, the following two TIA Portal functionalities can be used:

- Move or transfer the instance data of a function block
- Arrange the technology objects in an array

Combining these two functionalities can significantly reduce the programming effort for large quantity frameworks on technology objects.

4.5.1 Moving the instance data of a function block

If another function block or a technology function is called in a function block, the instance data of this function can be defined as follows:

- As an independent instance data block of the function in the user program
- As a multi-instance, i.e., as an instance data area in the instance data block of the calling function block
- As a parameter instance where the instance data of the function is moved to the higher-level function block via the interface of the calling function block.

Call options		ĸ
	Data block	
	Name MC_RESET_DB	
DB	Number 11	
instance	🔘 Manual	
	 Automatic 	
	If you call the function block as a single instance, the function block saves its data in its own instance data block.	
Multi		
instance		
Parameter instance	more	
	OK Cancel	

Figure 4-23 Instance mapping when calling a function block

The advantage of moving the data to the higher-level instance data block via the parameter instance is that an array of this instance data can be created in this block. Due to this, many calls of a function block or technology function can also be made inside a program loop using the array index.

Note It is not possible to define the instance data of a function block or technology function in a global data block. The instance data can only be stored in an instance data block.

4.5.2 Arranging the technology objects in an array

In order to also access the technology objects in the project via the array index, they, too, must be arranged in an array. The DB_ANY data type is suitable for this purpose.

All types of data blocks can be stored in an array of the DB_ANY data type. This means the technology data blocks of the technology objects of a project can be stored as well. The unambiguous assignment of the technology objects to the array

elements must be made once in the user program, e.g. during CPU startup in OB 100. This requires the following program parts in the user program:

No.	Function	Note				
1.	Create an array of the DB_ANY data type in a data block where you want to save the technology objects of the project.	Name Data type Static value Retain 1 C * Static Retain				
2.	During CPU startup (e.g., in OB 100), assign the appropriate technology objects of the project to the individual array elements.	<pre>10 16 "DB_Axes".Axis[1] := "PositioningAxis"; 17 "DB_Axes".Axis[2] := "SynchronousAxis"; 18 "DB_Axes".Axis[3] := "SpeedAxis"; 19 "DB_Axes".Axis[4] := "ExternalEncoder"; 20 21</pre>				
3.	Now the individual technology objects can be accessed in the program via the array index. This also allows you to perform a loop operation to the technology objects in the user program.	22 23 EpMMoveAbsolute_Instance(Axis:="DB_Axes".Axis[1], 24 Execute:=True, 25 Fostiion:=500.0); 27				

Table 4-5 Creating an array of the technology objects of a project

However, one specific aspect needs to be considered when using the DB_ANY data type: The assignment of array elements at parameters of a function block or technology function must be made only when the data types are identical. Therefore, in the above example, only the Axis[1] element of the array that actually corresponds to a positioning axis may be assigned to the Axis input of the MC_MoveAbsolute technology function that requires the TO_PositioningAxis data type at this location.

Note If the technology functions are directly interconnected with the technology objects in TIA Portal, for example, the layered concept of the axes described in Chapter 4.1.1 takes effect. This allows you to interconnect all equivalent or higher-level technology objects of the required data type at an input of a technology function.

If the DB_ANY data type is used for interconnection, the technology object contained in the interconnected parameter must <u>exactly</u> match the required data type of the technology function.

If using the DB_ANY data type requires type conversion, the call of the technology function must be encapsulated in an independent function block (FB) or a separate function (FC) for each data type to be converted that contains an input parameter for the technology object with the appropriate data type.

4.5.3 Example: Acknowledging alarms on many axes in a loop

The aim of the following example is to show acknowledgment of alarms on ten axes with the aid of a program loop.

First, this requires that the ten axes be provided in an array so that the individual axes can be accessed via the array index.

In practice, it is recommended to provide the array based on a PLC data type that contains the following information:

• Axis [DB_ANY]:

This is where the technology object is later assigned.

Type [Int]:

By this type ID, the array indicates the specific axis type. The axis types used in the project can, for example, be defined throughout the project via global constants with meaningful names.

• Name [String]:

This is where you can store a meaningful axis identifier, for example, for display on the HMI.

Figure 4-24 PLC data type for the array definition

UDT_AxisData									
Na	ame	Data type	Default value	Accessible f	Writa	Visible in	Setpoint		
1 📶	Axis	DB_ANY	0						
2 🕣	Туре	Int	0						
3 📶	Name	String				\checkmark			

Figure 4-25 Array definition for the technology objects

	DB	_Ax	es							
	Name			Data type	Start value	Retain	Accessible f	Writa	Visible in	
1		•	Stat	ic]				
2	-		▼ A	odis	Array[110] of "UDT_Axis Data"					~
З	-	1	• •	Axis[1]	"UDT_Axis Data"				 Image: A start of the start of	V
4	-			Axis	DB_ANY	0		V	 Image: A start of the start of	V
5	-		-	Туре	Int	0			V	V
6	-		-	Name	String				 Image: A start of the start of	V
7	-	1	• •	Axis[2]	"UDT_AxisData"				V	V
8	-	1	• •	Axis[3]	"UDT_AxisData"				 Image: A start of the start of	V
9	-	1	• •	Axis [4]	"UDT_AxisData"				V	V
10	-	1	• •	Axis[5]	"UDT_Axis Data"				 Image: A start of the start of	V
11	-	1	• •	Axis[6]	"UDT_AxisData"				V	V
12	-	1	• •	Axis[7]	"UDT_Axis Data"				v	v
13	-	1	• •	Axis[8]	"UDT_AxisData"				V	V
14	-00	1	-)	Axis [9]	"UDT_Axis Data"				 Image: A start of the start of	V
15	-	1	.)	Axis[10]	"UDT_AxisData"				V	

In the next step, the appropriate data of the technology objects must be unambiguously assigned to the array during CPU startup, i.e., in OB 100 of the user program.

Figure 4-26 Assigning the technology objects in OB 100 (using the example of Axis 1)

```
1 //Definition of Axis 1
2 "DB_Axes".Axis[1].Axis := "PositioningAxis"; //Select Technology object
3 "DB_Axes".Axis[1].Type := 2; //1: SpeedAxis, 2: PositioningAxis, 3: SynchronousAxis
4 "DB_Axes".Axis[1].Name := 'Axis 1'; //HMI name
5
6 //Definition of Axis 2
```

Now a function block or function that performs the type conversion must be created for each axis type for converting the individual axis types stored in the DB_ANY data type.





Now all ten axes of the user program can be acknowledged inside a FOR loop by calling the appropriate type conversion functions that contain the MC_Reset technology function. For the type conversion functions, an array for the moved instances of the MC_Reset type was additionally created in the static data of the calling function block.

Figure 4-28 Acknowledging all axes in a loop

```
28
29 ⊡FOR #index := 1 TO 10 DO
30
      CASE ("DB_Axes".Axis[#index].Type) OF
31 白
        1: //Axis type: SpeedAxis
32
            "ResetSpeedAxis" (Axis:="DB_Axes".Axis[#index].Axis,
33 占
34
                              Execute:=TRUE,
35
                              MC_RESET_Instance:=#ResetInstance[#index]);
36
37
        2: //Axis type: PositioningAxis
38 🗄
            "ResetPosAxis" (Axis := "DB Axes".Axis[#index].Axis,
39
                            Execute := TRUE,
40
                           MC RESET Instance := #ResetInstance[#index]);
41
        3: //Axis type: SynchronousAxis
42
43 🖨
            "ResetSyncAxis" (Axis := "DB Axes".Axis[#index].Axis,
                            Execute := TRUE,
44
45
                            MC_RESET_Instance := #ResetInstance[#index]);
46
      END_CASE;
47
48
    END FOR;
49
```

4.5.4 Example: Accessing axis data from the HMI

The aim of the second example is to show, for the HMI display, access to selected axis data such as position, velocity and acceleration via the axis index.

The array with the axis data of ten axes presented in the previous example is also the basis of this example. In order to access the specific data of an axis, a function (FC) to which the appropriate axis, of the same data type, from the array is transferred as a DB_ANY data type that accesses the axis data must be created for each axis type.

Figure 4-29 Block for a speed axis (without position information)

	Ax	isD	ataSpeed/	Axis				
		Name				Data type	Default value	Supervision
1	-	•	Input					
2	-		 Axis 			TO_SpeedAxis		
3		•	Output					
4	-	•	Position			LReal		
5	-		Velocity			LReal		
6	-		Accelera	ation		LReal		
7		•	ActualSp	ActualSpeed LReal				
	IF		CASE FOR OF TO DO	WHILE (**)	REGION			
		1	#Positi	on := LRE	AL#0.0	0000;		
	2 #Velocity := #Axis.Vel			.ocity;				
	3 #Acceleration := #Axis			Acceleration;				
		4	#Actual	Speed :=	#Axis.	ActualSpeed;		
		5						



	Ax	isD	ataPosAxis			
		Na	me	Data type	Default value	Supervision
1	-	•	Input			
2			Axis	TO_Positioning)	
З		•	Output			
4	-00		Position	LReal		
5		•	Velocity	LReal		
6	-	•	Acceleration	LReal		
7	-		ActualSpeed	LReal		
	IF	1 2 3 4	CASE FOR WHILE OF TD DO DO (**) REGION 1 #Position := #Axis.Ac 2 #Velocity := #Axis.Ac 3 #Acceleration := #Axi 4 #ActualSpeed := #Axis	tualPosition; tualVelocity; s.ActualAccelerati .ActualSpeed;	on;	
		5	5			
1000						

Figure 4-31 Block for a synchronous axis

	Ax	AxisDataSyncAxis									
		Name			Data type	Default value	Supervision				
1	-	🔻 Input									
2	-		 Axis 				TO_SynchronousAxis				
3	-	•	Outp	ut							
4	-00		 Position 		LReal						
5	-		 Velocity 		LReal						
6	-		A	ccelera	ation			LReal			
7	-		A	ctualS	peed			LReal			
	IF		CASE OF	FOR TO DO	WHILE DO	(**)	REGION				
			1 #P	ositi	on :=	#Ax:	is.Act	ualPosition;			
	2 #Velocity := #Axis.Act				#Axi	is.Act	ualVelocity;				
		3 #Acceleration := #Axis				n :=	#Axis	.ActualAcceleration;			
	4 #ActualSpeed := #Axis.					:= 4	Axis.	ActualSpeed;			
			5								

Then the axis data can be read with the aid of a CASE statement that assigns the individual axis types.

4.6 Providing axis data in the user program

Figure 4-32 Retrieving the axis data of all ten axes

```
28
29 - FOR #index := 1 TO 10 DO
30
31 白
      CASE ("DB_Axes".Axis[#index].Type) OF
        1: //Axis type: SpeedAxis
32
             "AxisDataSpeedAxis" (Axis:="DB Axes".Axis[#index].Axis,
33 白
                                 Position=>#HMI_Data[#index].Position,
34
                                Velocity=>#HMI_Data[#index].Velocity,
35
36
                                 Acceleration=>#HMI_Data[#index].Acceleration,
37
                                ActualSpeed=>#HMI_Data[#index].ActualSpeed);
38
39
        2: //Axis type: PositioningAxis
             "AxisDataPosAxis" (Axis := "DB_Axes".Axis[#index].Axis,
40 🛱
41
                               Position => #HMI Data[#index].Position,
42
                               Velocity => #HMI_Data[#index].Velocity,
43
                               Acceleration => #HMI_Data[#index].Acceleration,
44
                               ActualSpeed => #HMI_Data[#index].ActualSpeed);
45
46
        3: //Axis type: SynchronousAxis
             "AxisDataSyncAxis"(Axis := "DB_Axes".Axis[#index].Axis,
47 片
                                Position => #HMI_Data[#index].Position,
48
                                Velocity => #HMI_Data[#index].Velocity,
49
                                Acceleration => #HMI Data[#index].Acceleration.
50
51
                               ActualSpeed => #HMI Data[#index].ActualSpeed);
      END CASE:
52
53
    END FOR:
54
55
56
```

```
Siemens AG 2017 All rights reserved
```

4.6 Providing axis data in the user program

Current data of an axis or technology object is provided to the user program via the technology data blocks. This is where, for example, the current position and the setpoint position of an axis or its current velocity can be retrieved for further use in the user program or display on the HMI.

However, access to the technology data blocks does not act in the same way as normal access to global data blocks from the user program; in this case, when requested by the CPU's operating system, the data of the technology data block must be read from the technology object and provided via the technology data block. And this process requires some time.

For performance reasons, it is not recommended to read the required parameters in the user program in the appropriate places directly from the technology data blocks of the axes; rather, it is recommended to copy these parameters, e.g., at the beginning of an organization block as a collection of parameters from the technology data blocks of the axes or technology objects to a global data block and then use only the data from the global data block within the user program, for example, for display on the HMI.

Note If the user program requires data that is very up-to-date, this data cannot be determined using the above procedure as the data, for example due an organization block interrupt, may already be obsolete. Then this data must be read in the user program directly from the technology data block.

4.7 Organization blocks for motion control

4.7.1 Basic information about motion control OBs

When you create a technology object, organization blocks are automatically created for processing the technology objects. The motion control functionality of the technology objects generates its own execution level and is called based on the motion control application cycle.

The following organization blocks are created:

MC-Servo [OB91]

Calculation of the position controller of the axes.

 MC-Interpolator [OB92] Motion control with evaluation of motion control instructions, setpoint generation and monitoring functionality for the axes.

The organization blocks are protected (know-how protection). The program code cannot be viewed or modified. The cycle ratio of the two organization blocks to one another is always 1:1. The MC-Servo OB is always executed before the MC-Interpolator OB.

Application cycle

The application cycle and the organization blocks' priority can be set to suit your requirements for control quality and system load.

In the organization block properties in "General > Cycle Time", you can set the application cycle in which MC-Servo is called as follows:

• Synchronous to the bus

MC-Servo is called synchronously with (1:1) or at a reduced ratio to a bus system. In the properties of the selected bus system, you can set the send clock. From the "Distributed I/O" drop-down list, you can select one of the following bus systems:

- Isochronous PROFIBUS DP
- Isochronous PROFINET IO

You cannot call MC-Servo synchronously with a bus system that is connected to the CPU via a communications processor/communications module (CP/CM).

Cyclic

MC-Servo is called cyclically with the specified application cycle.

The selected application cycle must be long enough to be able to process all technology objects in one cycle. If the processing time of the technology objects is longer than the application cycle, overflows occur that cause the CPU to stop.

Determining the OB runtime

You can check the runtime of MC-Servo and MC-Interpolator using the extended instruction "RT_INFO".

Priority of the organization blocks

If necessary, you can set the priority of the organization blocks in their properties in "General > Attributes > Priority number":

- MC-Servo
 - Priority 17 to 31 (default value: 26)
- MC-Interpolator Priority 16 to 30 (default value: 25)

Note	The priority of MC Servo must be at least one higher than the priority of MC-
	Interpolator.

Note When changing the priority of MC-Servo, make sure that the MC-Servo organization block is not interrupted by other organization blocks.

4.7.2 Clock reduction (CPU firmware V1.5 and higher)

You can reduce the application cycle of MC-Servo relative to the send clock of an isochronous PROFINET IO system. As the factor, you can set an integer multiple of the send clock. Values up to 14 times the send clock (max. 32 ms) are possible for the application cycle.

If you call an isochronous interrupt OB and MC-Servo synchronously with the same PROFINET IO system, set the same application cycle for both organization blocks.

4.7.3 Processing the motion control functionality

When processing the motion control functionality, the MC-Servo and MC-Interpolator organization blocks are called and processed in each application cycle. The remaining cycle time is available for processing your user program.

For error-free program execution, the following rules apply:

- In each application cycle, MC-Servo must be started and processed completely.
 Overflows of MC-Servo, i.e. processing the organization block cannot be completed within an application cycle, set the CPU to Stop mode.
- In each application cycle, the associated MC-Interpolator must be started. Completing MC-Interpolator may even extend into the next application cycle, which represents an overflow of the MC-Interpolator OB. The CPU tolerates a maximum of three successive overflows before it goes to Stop mode.
- When using the DSC (Dynamic Servo Control) functionality, the runtime of MC-Servo, including MC-PreServo and MC-PostServo, must be significantly shorter than the PROFINET cycle so that data output to the drive can always take place in the next PROFINET cycle.

4.7.4 Using the MC-PreServo and MC-PostServo OBs

When using the motion control functions of the SIMATIC S7-1500, the following organization blocks are automatically created:

- MC-Servo [OB91] Calculation of the position controller of the axes.
- MC-Interpolator [OB92] Motion control with evaluation of motion control instructions, setpoint generation and monitoring functionality for the axes.

If you have to make changes to the drive's position control loop in the MC-Servo OB, for example when using an alternative or non-standardized encoder system or

when using a special drive such as a hydraulic axis, these changes cannot be included in the protected MC-Servo OB. The following two editable organization blocks are available for these purposes:

MC-PreServo [OB67]

Execution in the task system between the input process image update and before the calculation of the position controller of the axes by the MC-Servo OB.

The input values of the position controller can be changed in this block.

 MC-PostServo [OB95] Execution in the task system after the calculation of the position controller of the axes by the MC-Servo OB and before process image output to the I/O. The output values of the position controller can be changed in this block.

Figure 4-33 OB processing sequence in the task system for the MC-Servo OB



The input and output values of the position controller are transferred in the control loop of the axes using the PROFIdrive telegram. The data can be broken down as follows:

• Input values of the position controller:

For example, the current encoder values of the drive such as the current position that are transferred to the position controller in compliance with encoder telegram 81.

• Output values of the position controller: For example, the speed setpoints output by the position controller that are forwarded to the drive using the PROFIdrive telegram.

Changing the input and output values of the position controller may be necessary, for example, in the following cases:

- Use of an analog value (potentiometer) as an encoder replacement.
- Control of a hydraulic axis using the motion control functionality of the SIMATIC CPU that may require linearizing the valve characteristic of the hydraulic axis with the aid of a compensation characteristic.

To be able to change the input and output values of the position controller, the technology object used may be directly connected to the drive I/O (I/O image) or a data block (DB). Then these data areas can be manipulated in the two organization blocks, MC-PreServo and MC-PostServo, which enables you to make the desired changes in the control loop before or after the calculation of the position controller.



Figure 4-34 Connection of the technology object to a data block

To generate a data block usable for this purpose in the user program, proceed as follows:

Table 4-6	Creating a data	a block for (connecting a	technology object
-----------	-----------------	---------------	--------------	-------------------

No.	Instruction	Note
1.	In the user program, create a global data block.	
2.	In the data block properties, set the block as not optimized. Only non-optimized data blocks have unique offset addresses of the data.	AxisData (DB9) X General General Information Information Time stamps Only store in load memory Compilation Only store in load memory Protection Only store in load memory Attributes Information Download without reinitialization Compilation K III K III
3.	Insert a data area for the input and output values of the position controller into the data block. The data area can be defined with the aid of a PLC data type, for example for telegram 3 (PD_TEL3), that has already been stored in TIA Portal. However, this data type must be entered manually; it cannot be selected from the drop-down list in the data block.	AxisData Data type Offset Start value 1 CU ▼ Static 0 1 Start value 2 CU ▼ Static 0 1 Start value 3 CU ▼ Static 0 1 Start value 4 CU ▼ Static 0 1 Start value 5 CU ▼ Floggam3 PD_TEL3 0 1 6 CU ▼ Floggam3 PD_TEL3 0 1 6 CU ● Stort PD_Stort 1 1 7 CU ● Stort PD_Stort 1 1 1 6 CU ● Stort PD_TEL3 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <t< td=""></t<>
4.	Compile the newly created data block.	
5.	Now you can connect the appropriate data areas of the technology object to the data areas of the data block in the technology object's configuration dialog.	Die

4 Programming Tips

4.8 Motion control resources

No.	Instruction	Note
		Exceler

Note The PLC data types stored in TIA Portal for the individual telegrams are each named PD_TELxxx and the telegram number must be entered for "xxx", for example PD_TEL105, PD_TEL81, etc.

4.8 Motion control resources

Each Technology CPU 31xT has a fixed number of usable technology objects for each object type, for example a maximum of 8 axes and a maximum of 16 output cams. Not using the maximum number of an object type does not affect another object type. For example, when using only 6 axes, not more than 16 output cams can be used in the CPU. Therefore, from the user's perspective, the usage of the CPU's memory and computing power is not always optimal.

A flexible concept for using technology objects was introduced with the SIMATIC S7-1500(T). Each CPU has a fixed number of motion control resources that can be divided among the technology objects. An exception to this are cams that represent pure data objects and therefore do not consume motion control resources.

Note Each technology object also requires computing time on the CPU. This means that each technology object extends the CPU's application cycle. Therefore, when determining the CPU type necessary for the technological requirements, keep an eye on the resulting application cycle length, including any reduction that may be set. Also consider potential effects on processes at other lower-priority execution levels of the CPU, e.g. safety.

4.8.1 Motion control resources provided

The following table lists the provided motion control resources for some selected CPUs. The provided resources depend on the CPU hardware version used and the firmware version used.

4.8 Motion control resources

CPU type	Order no.	Firmware	MC resources
S7-1511	6ES7 511-1AK01-0AB0	V 2.0	800
S7-1513	6ES7 513-1AL01-0AB0	V 2.0	800
S7-1515	6ES7 515-2AM01-0AB0	V 2.0	2400
S7-1516	6ES7 516-3AN01-0AB0	V 2.0	2400
S7-1517	6ES7 517-3AP00-0AB0	V 2.0	10240
S7-1518	6ES7 518-4AP00-0AB0	V 2.0	10240
S7-1511T	6ES7 511-1TK01-0AB0	V 2.0	800
S7-1515T	6ES7 515-2TM01-0AB0	V 2.0	2400
S7-1517T(F)	6ES7 517-3TP00-0AB0 6ES7 517-3UP00-0AB0	V 2.0	10240

Table 4-7	Provided mot	ion contro	l resources fo	or selected	CPU types
	1 IOVIGED IIIO			or selected	OF O types

Note For the exact values for the provided motion control resources of a CPU, please refer to the specific CPU's technical specifications or manual.

4.8.2 Number of cams provided

The following table lists the maximum number of cams for some selected CPUs.

CPU type	Order no.	Firmware	Maximum number
S7-1511T	6ES7 511-1TK01-0AB0	V 2.0	20
S7-1515T	6ES7 515-2TM01-0AB0	V 2.0	60
S7-1517T(F)	6ES7 517-3TP00-0AB0 6ES7 517-3UP00-0AB0	V 2.0	128

Note A Cam technology object does not consume motion control resources. The number of cams that can be created in a CPU is limited by the CPU's available work memory (data memory).

For detailed information, please refer to the specific CPU's technical specifications or manual.

4.8 Motion control resources

4.8.3 Motion control resources consumed

The following table lists the motion control resources consumed by the technology objects.

Technology object	Version	MC resources	Comment
Speed Axis	V3.0	40	
Positioning Axis	V3.0	80	
Synchronous Axis	V3.0	160	
External Encoder	V3.0	80	
Measuring Input	V3.0	40	
Output Cam	V3.0	20	
Cam Track	V3.0	160	

Table 4-9 Motion control resource consumption of the technology objects

4.8.4 Checking the motion control resource consumption

In TIA Portal, selecting Program info > Resources allows you to easily check the actual motion control resource consumption of a user program. The Resources tab compares the motion control resources provided by the CPU (1) with the motion control resources consumed by the technology objects used (2) and displays the resource consumption as a percentage (3).



Figure 4-35 Motion control resource consumption display

If, when developing the user program, it turns out that the selected CPU type does not provide a sufficient number of required motion control resources, the CPU's context menu allows you to quickly and easily replace the CPU with a suitable CPU type in the hardware configuration.

4.8 Motion control resources



Figure 4-37 Change CPU – selection dialog of the new CPU

Current devi	ce:	New device:		▼ Controllers	
	And Anno 22			✓ Im SIMATIC \$7-1500	
				CPU 1511-1 PN	
	0.0		66 B	CPU 1511C-1 PN	
				CPU 1512C-1 PN	
				CPU 1513-1 PN	
	CPU 1515T-2 PN	C	PU 1517T-3 PN/DP	CPU 1515-2 PN	
				CPU 1516-3 PN/DP	
Article no.:	6ES7 515-2TM01-0AB0	Article no.: 6	ES7 517-3TP00-0AB0	CPU 1517-3 PN/DP	
Version:	V2.0	Version: V	/2.0	CPU 1518-4 PN/DP	
				CPU 1518-4 PN/DP ODF	
Description:		Description:		 Im CPU 1511F-1 PN Im CPU 1513F-1 PN 	
CPU with disp	olay; work memory 500 KB	Technology CPU w	vith display; work		
code and 3 N	1B data; 30 ns bit	memory 3 MB cod	de and 8 MB data; 2	CPU 1515F-2 PN	
concept, tech	nology functions: motion	protection concer	pt, technology	CPU 1516F-3 PN/DP	
control, close	d-loop control, counting	functions: Advance	ed Motion Control,	CPU 1517F-3 PN/DP	
& measuring; PROFINETIO	; tracing; 1st interface:	closed-loop contr measuring: tracin	ol, counting &	CPU 1518F-4 PN/DP	
performance	upgrade PROFINET V2.3,	PROFINET IO conti	roller, supports RT/IRT,	CPU 1518F-4 PN/DP OD	
2 ports, I-devi	ice, MRP, MRPD, transport	performance upg	rade PROFINET V2.3,	CPU 1511T-1 PN	
Communicati	ion, S7 communication.	2 ports, I-device, I protocol TCP/IP, se	MRP, MRPD, transport ecure Open User	- CPU 1517T-3 PN/DP	
Web server, D	ONS client, OPC UA server	Communication,	S7 communication,	6ES7 517-3TP00-0A	
data access, routing; 2nd i	constant bus cycle time, interface: PROFINET IO	Web server, DNS o data access, isoc	client, OPC UA server hronous mode,	CPU 1517TF-3 PN/DP	
Compatibilit	y information				
Informatio	n				
'DP interfa	ce' will be created!				
-					

 $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$

5.1 Information about the technologies

5 Appendix

5.1 Information about the technologies

The following table once again shows all technologies in the different CPUs.

Technology	S7-31xT	S7-1500	S7-1500T
Single-axis motion functions	Yes	Yes	Yes
Gearing	Yes	Limited	Yes
Camming	Yes	No	Yes
Output cams and cam tracks	Yes	Yes	Yes
Measuring inputs	Yes	Yes	Yes
External encoders	Yes	Yes	Yes
Path objects	Yes	No	No
Pressure control	Yes	No	No
Hydraulic axes	Yes	Specific to application	Specific to application
Stepper drives	Yes (IM174)	S7-1500C / TM PTO4	TM PTO4

Table 5-1	Technologies compared
-----------	-----------------------

The following chapters provide additional information about the above technologies and discuss whether and how they can be implemented in the CPUs of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series.

5.1.1 Single-axis motion functions

All CPU types of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series feature single-axis motion functions that can be used directly without additional software.

5.1.2 Gearing and camming

The relative gearing functionality is integrated in all CPUs of the S7-1500 series and can be used directly. If the following functions are required, a CPU of the S7-1500T series must be used:

- Absolute gearing to create a defined offset between master axis and slave axis already during the synchronization process.
- Camming.
- Actual value coupling between master axis and slave axis or use of external encoders as a master axis.
- Use of MC_Phasing for phase shift between master axis and slave axis.

5.1.3 Output cams and cam tracks, measuring inputs and external encoders

Single output cams and cam tracks for the use of multiple output cams in one track, measuring inputs and external encoders are available in each CPU of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series.

5.1.4 Path objects

Path objects and machine kinematics and motion commands for trajectories are currently not yet available in TIA Portal and in the CPUs of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series.

5.1.5 Pressure control

Pressure control is currently not available via the technology functions of the CPUs of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series.

Specific to an application, pressure control can nevertheless be implemented using the PID and PID Compact controllers and suitable input and output modules.

Alternatively, pressure control can be implemented by controlling a hydraulic valve with the aid of the TM Pulse technology module and a suitable user program.

5.1.6 Hydraulic axes

Control of hydraulic axes using the technology functions of the CPUs of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series is currently not available.

Specific to an application, control of hydraulic axes and consideration of a hydraulics characteristic can be implemented in the MC-PostServo organization block in the CPUs of the S7-1500 and S7-1500T series.

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

This chapter compares the principle of operation of the individual PLCopen blocks of the technology functions. Its aim is to provide information and support for migrating a user program from the CPU31xT to the S7-1500 / S7-1500T.

If technology functions are not available on the S7-1500 / S7-1500T, the appropriate chapter shows, where possible, an application solution to transferring the functionality.

Note At present, all technology functions that are not listed in the following chapters cannot be migrated to the S7-1500 / S7-1500T.

If your user program uses one of these functions, a migration is currently not possible or you have to find an application solution to implement this functionality.

Basic differences between the PLCopen blocks

The individual PLCopen blocks of the technology functions of the CPU31xT and the S7-1500 / S7-1500T basically differ in the following aspects that require special attention when migrating the technology functions:

- Different data types at the Axis input parameter
 In the CPU31xT, an integer value was available for axis assignment that was checked during CPU runtime and could therefore be changed during CPU runtime. In the S7-1500 / S7-1500T, axis assignment requires that the symbolic name of a technology object be entered, whose validity is already checked during programming by data type mapping.

 For self-created user function blocks that are to encapsulate PLCopen blocks, an Axis input can be created with the TO_Axis, TO_SpeedAxis, TO_PositioningAxis or TO_SynchronousAxis data types or a parameter of the DB_ANY type can be assigned to the Axis parameter of the included PLCopen function blocks that then refers to the technology object or the technology data block of the technology object of the correct axis type (example in Chapter 4.1).
- Different data types for floating-point values
 In the CPU31xT, max. the REAL data type was available for floating-point values. In the S7-1500 / S7-1500T, the precision of floating-point values was increased by adding the LREAL data type that is now used in the technology functions instead of REAL. After the migration, this may result in messages in TIA Portal regarding the precision of the transferred values at the parameters of the PLCopen blocks.
- Differences in the available modes

Some technology functions of the CPU31xT have an extended scope of modes and a different assignment of the individual PLCopen block modes than the functions of the S7-1500 / S7-1500T; this is due to the currently available range of functions or the additional technologies in the CPU31xT such as hydraulics. Therefore, after the migration, carefully check mode control of the technology functions from the user program to avoid an unexpected response of the machine or axes and any resulting potential risks for humans and the machine.

• Different error concepts

The CPU31xT and the S7-1500 / S7-1500T have different error concepts. Consequently, the error codes at the ErrorID output of the technology functions do not match. Therefore, error handling in the user program must be specifically checked once again after the migration.

• DoneFlag input parameter

In the CPU31xT, the DoneFlag input parameter was used to quickly display the completion of a job issued via a PLCopen function block in the control section of the CPU. Due to the architecture of the S7-1500 / S7-1500T, this function is now no longer required. For this reason, the DoneFlag input parameter is no longer available at the PLCopen function blocks of the S7-1500 / S7-1500T.

NOTICE After a migration, check the user program specifically in terms of the mode specified at the PLCopen blocks of the technology functions to avoid an unexpected response of the machine or drives.

Meaning of the icons

The icons at the beginning of a chapter indicate the availability of the respective technology function in the CPU types:

Table 5-2	Meaning	of the icons
-----------	---------	--------------

Icon	CPU type			
	Technology CPU 31xT The technology functions for motion control marked with this icon are standard features in all controllers of the S7-300T series.			
	SIMATIC S7-1500 The technology functions for motion control marked with this icon are standard features in all controllers of the S7-1500 series.			
	SIMATIC S7-1500 The technology functions for motion control marked with this icon are not available as an independent technology function in the S7-1500 technology controller. However, they can be implemented in the user program by simple program functions such as direct access to a data block.			
2	SIMATIC S7-1500T The technology functions for motion control marked with this icon are only available in the S7-1500T technology controller of the S7-1500 series.			
	SIMATIC S7-1500T The technology functions for motion control marked with this icon are not available as an independent technology function in the S7-1500T technology controller. However, they can be implemented in the user program by simple program functions such as direct access to a data block.			

5.2.1 MC_Power

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables or disables a technology object.

Table 5-3 MC_	Power				
	CPU31xT		S7-1500(T)		
	MC_Power			MC_Power	
— Axis		Status	— Axis		Status
Enable		Busy	Enable		Busy —
Mode	Mode		StartMo	ode	Error
Contraction Contra	ode Value Value	ErrorID ——	StopMo	ode I	ErrorID
Input parame	eters (IN)				
Parameter	Data type	Fur	nction	Data type	Parameter
Axis	INT	Technol	logy object	TO_Axis	Axis
Enable	BOOL	Enable or disable technology object		BOOL	Enable
Mode	INT	Axis Enable pos synchronou position-cor on a positi b	s mode sitioning axis / s axis not on a ntrolled basis / on-controlled asis	DINT	StartMode
StopMode	INT	Stop mode when disabling the technology object		INT	StopMode
Q OutputValue	REAL	Control signal replacement value for Q valve			
F OutputValue	REAL	Control signal replacement value for P valve / F output			
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter
Status	BOOL	Enable s technol	Enable status of the technology object		Status
Busy	BOOL	The job is be	eing processed	BOOL	Busy
Error	BOOL	An error or process	ccurred while ing the job	BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Error ID		WORD	ErrorID

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:
Та	ble	5-4
10	DIC	J- -

Mode / StartN	lode input parameter	
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)
0	Speed axis A speed axis with encoder is enabled on a closed-loop speed- controlled basis. A speed axis without encoder is enabled on an open-loop speed-controlled basis. Positioning axis and synchronous axis The axis is enabled on a position- controlled basis. Default setting	Do not enable positioning axis / synchronous axis on a position- controlled basis
1	Speed axis A speed axis with encoder is enabled on a closed-loop speed- controlled basis. A speed axis without encoder is enabled on an open-loop speed-controlled basis. Positioning axis and synchronous axis The axis is enabled on a closed- loop speed-controlled basis. The enable is saved (see mode = 0).	Enable positioning axis / synchronous axis on a position- controlled basis Default setting The parameter is initially effective when enabling the positioning axis (enable changes from FALSE to TRUE) and during the enable after successful acknowledgment of an alarm that caused the axis disable. When using a speed axis or an external encoder, this parameter will be ignored.
2	Following mode with enabled power unit	[Not available]
3	Following mode without enabled power unit	[Not available]
4	Simulation mode	[Not available]
5	Enable axis on a position controlled basis (positioning axes and synchronous axes only). The enable is saved (see mode = 0).	[Not available]
6	Enable axis on a force/pressure- controlled basis. Force/pressure control is enabled with pressure setpoint = current pressure actual value. If force/pressure control is terminated by a motion job, the axis goes to position-controlled mode.	[Not available]

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table 5-5

StopMode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	DefaultStop Default setting	Emergency stop Default setting				
1	FastStop	Immediate stop				
2	TimeStop	Stop with maximum dynamic response values				
3	OFF2Stop	[Not available]				
4	GearStop	[Not available]				
5	Ramp stop (real electrical axes only)	[Not available]				
6	Fast stop (real electrical axes only)	[Not available]				

5.2.2 MC_Reset

This technology function is available in ...



With this function, you can acknowledge all technology alarms that can be acknowledged in the user program.

Table	5-6	MC	Reset
1 abio	00		1.0000

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)					
ſ	MC_Reset						MC_Reset		
	Axis		Done			Axis		Done	
	Execute	•	Busy			Execute		Busy	
_	Restart Command				Restart	Coi /	nmand Aborted		
	Error						Error		
		E	ErrorID					ErrorID	<u> </u>
Parameter Data type Function					Data type	Pa	ameter		
					TO Object	1 01	Avie		
Txoout			Cto			n ation			
Execute	9	BOOL	Sta	with risi	ng edge	ction	BOOL		zxecute
Restart		BOOL		Reinitia	lization		BOOL		Restart
			The technology object is reinitialized with the configured start values.						
Output	param	neters (OUT)						1	
Parame	eter	Data type		Fund	tion		Data type	Pa	rameter
Done		BOOL	٦	The job is	comple	te	BOOL		Done
Busy		BOOL	The job is being processed		BOOL		Busy		
Comma Aborted	and 1	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Co	mmand Aborted		
Error		BOOL	An	error oco processir	curred wing the jo	hile b	BOOL		Error
ErrorID		WORD		Erro	r ID		WORD		ErrorID

5.2.3 MC_Home

This technology function is available in ...



With this technology function, you can create the relationship between the current position of the technology object and the mechanical position.

	CPU31xT		S7-1500(T)			
Axis Exect Positi Mode Done	MC_Home Axis Done Execute Busy Position Command Aborted Mode Error DoneFlag ErrorID		Axis Execute Position Mode	MC_Home	Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID	
Input parameters (IN)						
Parameter	Data type	Func	ction	Data type	Parameter	
Axis	INT	Technolo	gy object	TO_Axis	Axis	
Execute	Execute BOOL Start techn with ris		logy function ng edge	BOOL	Execute	
Position	REAL Homing position The parameter is us based on the mode selection.		position eter is used the mode ction.	LREAL	Position	
Mode	INT	Mode s	election	INT	Mode	
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions				
Output para	ameters (OUT)					
Parameter	Data type	Fund	tion	Data type	Parameter	
Done	BOOL	The job is	The job is complete		Done	
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	he job is being processed		Busy	
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	The job was aborted by another job		Command Aborted	
Error	BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error	
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID	

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-8 Mode input parameter Value Meaning in the Meaning in the CPU31xT S7-1500(T) 0 Direct homing (absolute) Active homing Home position approach according The current position of the to the axis configuration technology object is set to the value of the "Position" parameter. **Default setting Default setting** Active homing Direct homing (relative) 1 Home position approach according The current position of the to the axis configuration. The value technology object is shifted by the of the Position input parameter is value of the "Position" parameter. used as the home position coordinate. Passive homing (without reset) 2 Passive homing Homing according to the Same function as "mode" 8, the configuration in S7T Config. The difference being that enabling the value of the Position input function does not reset the "homed" parameter is used as the home status. position coordinate. 3 **Direct homing** Active homing The value of the Position input The Positioning Axis / Synchronous parameter is assigned to the current Axis TO performs a homing motion according to the configuration. After position. completing the motion, the axis is at the value of the "Position" parameter. 4 Correction of the actual position [Not available] (New actual position = current actual position - Position parameter) 5 Absolute encoder adjustment Active homing The value of the Position input The Positioning Axis / Synchronous parameter is assigned to the current Axis TO performs a homing motion according to the configuration. After position. The position shift due to absolute encoder adjustment is completing the motion, the axis is at retained after a power failure. The the home position configured in axis must be at a standstill to allow "Technology object > Configuration > precise adjustment. Any correction Extended parameters > Homing > of the position by mode = 3, 4, 6 or Active homing". 7 is retained after absolute encoder (<TO>.Homing.HomePosition) adjustment. For absolute encoder adjustment, the axis must be in position-controlled mode. 6 Setpoint position correction in Absolute encoder adjustment the base coordinate system (relative) Any superimposed motion is based The current position is shifted by the value of the "Position" parameter. on the corrected setpoint position. The calculated absolute value offset (New setpoint position = current is stored retentively in the CPU. base position - Position parameter) (<TO>.StatusSensor[n].AbsEncoder Offset)

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
7	Setpoint position correction in the superimposed coordinate system (New setpoint position = current superimposed position - Position parameter) Please note: Position corrections (mode = 3, 4, 6 or 7) are active in addition to the absolute encoder adjustment. After a POWER OFF or restart, only the absolute encoder adjustment is active.	Absolute encoder adjustment (absolute) The current position is set to the value of the "Position" parameter. The calculated absolute value offset is stored retentively in the CPU. (<to>.StatusSensor[n].AbsEncoder Offset)</to>				
8	Canceling passive homing A started passive homing job is canceled.	Passive homing When the homing mark is detected, the actual value is set to the value of the "Position" parameter.				
9	[Not available]	Canceling passive homing A running passive homing job is canceled.				
10	[Not available]	Passive homing When the homing mark is detected, the actual value is set to the home position configured in "Technology object > Configuration > Extended parameters > Homing > Passive homing". (<to>.Homing.HomePosition)</to>				

5.2.4 MC_Stop

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function stops all motion processes and prevents the axes from restarting.

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
	Axis Execute Deceler Jerk DoneFla	MC_Stop	Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID			
Input parameters (IN)						
Param	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis		INT	Technol	ogy object		
Execut	e	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge			
Decele	ration	REAL	Dece	leration		
Jerk		REAL	J	erk		
DoneF	lag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job i	s complete		
Busy		BOOL	The job is be	ne job is being processed		
Comm Aborte	and d	BOOL	The job wa anot	is aborted by her job		
Error		BOOL	An error oc processi	ccurred while ng the job		
ErrorID)	WORD	Err	or ID		

For the Deceleration parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.5 MC_Halt

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function decelerates a motion of an axis to a standstill.

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)			
	Axis Execute Deceler Jerk DoneFla	MC_Halt ation Cor ag I	Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID	Axis Execu Decele Jerk	MC_Halt te eration A	Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID	
Param	eter	Data type	Fund	tion	Data type	Parameter	
Axis		INT	Technology object		TO_ SpeedAxis	Axis	
Execute BOOL		Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute		
Decele	ration	REAL	Decele	eration	LREAL	Deceleration	
Jerk		REAL	Je	rk	LREAL	Jerk	
			Use jerk limit v	when stopping	BOOL	Abort Acceleration	
DoneF	lag	INT	NT Flag for central evaluation the status of the technolog functions				
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)			-		
Param	eter	Data type	Func	tion	Data type	Parameter	
Done		BOOL	Zero veloci	Zero velocity reached		Done	
Busy		BOOL	The job is bei	The job is being processed		Busy	
Comma Aborte	and d	BOOL	The job was anoth	The job was aborted by another job		Command Aborted	
Error		BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while	BOOL	Error	
ErrorID)	WORD	Erro	r ID	WORD	ErrorID	

Table 5-10 MC_Halt

For the Deceleration parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed (exception: the axis is at a standstill)
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.6 MC_HaltSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function decelerates a superimposed motion of an axis to a standstill.

Table 5-11	MC	HaltSu	perlm	posed

		CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
	MC_HaltSuperImposed						
	Axis		Done				
	Execute	9	Busy				
	Deceler	ation Cor	nmand borted				
	Jerk		Error				
		I	ErrorID				
Input p	barame	ters (IN)					
Param	eter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter	
Axis		INT	_	Technolo	gy object		
Execut	e	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge				
Decele	ration	REAL		Deceleration			
Jerk		REAL		Je	erk		
Outpu	t paran	neters (OUT)	•				
Param	eter	Data type		Function		Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	Su	Superimposed motion terminated			
Busy		BOOL	The j	The job is being processed			
Command Aborted		BOOL	The	The job was aborted by another job			
Error		BOOL	An f	error oco processir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID)	WORD		Erro	or ID		

For the Deceleration parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed (exception: the axis is at a standstill)
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.7 MC_ChangeDataSet

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function allows you to toggle between multiple data sets of a technology object.

Table 5-12	MC	ChangeDataSet
	1010_	

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
Axis Execut Sync Encod Datase DoneF	MC_ChangeDataSe e Cor er A t lag I	t Done Busy mmand Noorted Error ErrorID			
Input parame	eters (IN)	_			
Parameter	Data type	Func	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis	INT	Technolo	gy object		
Execute	BOOL	Start technol with risir	ogy function ng edge		
Sync Encoder	BOOL	With/witho synchro	ut encoder nization		
Dataset	INT	Data set	number		
DoneFlag INT Flag the s		Flag for centra the status of the status of the status	l evaluation of ne technology tions		
Output para	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	tion	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	Data set wa	as changed		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job		
Error	BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID	WORD Error ID		r ID		

5.2.8 MC_MoveAbsolute

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts a positioning motion of an axis to an absolute position.

	CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)		
	MC_MoveAbsolute				N	IC_MoveAbsolute		
Axis		Done		— A>	xis		Done	
- Execu	Execute			— E>	xecute		Busy	
Positi	on Co	mmand		Pc	osition	Con	nmand	
	itv	Aborted Error		Ve	elocitv	Aborted		
Accel	eration	ErrorID		Ac	ccelera	ation F	=rrorID	
Decel	eration	LINGIND			eceler	ation		
Decei	eration				ark			
Jeik	•			0	inantiar			
Direct	ION				rection	1		
Mode								
Done	-lag							
Input param	eters (IN)							
Parameter	Data type		Fund	ction		Data type	Parameter	
Axis	INT		Technology object		TO_Positio- ningAxis	Axis		
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge		n	BOOL	E	Execute	
Position	REAL	Target position				LREAL		Position
Velocity	REAL	Velocity			LREAL	,	Velocity	
Acceleration	REAL	Acceleration			LREAL	Acce	leration	
Deceleration	REAL	Deceleration			LREAL	Dece	leration	
Jerk	REAL	Jerk			LREAL		Jerk	
Direction	INT	Direction command for modulo axes		r	INT	D	virection	
Mode	INT		Overrid	e mode				
DoneFlag INT		Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions		n of ogy				
Output para	meters (OUT)	_						
Parameter	Data type		Fund	ction		Data type	Par	ameter
Done	BOOL	Та	rget posit	ion reached	d	BOOL		Done
Busy	usy BOOL The job is being		ing processed		BOOL		Busv	

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job	BOOL	Command Aborted
Error	BOOL	An error oco processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Tah	ما	5-1	Δ
Iau	ie	0- I	4

Direction input parameter							
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)					
0	Use default of modulo axis Default setting	[Not available]					
1	Positive direction of rotation	Positive direction of rotation Default setting					
2	Shortest path	Negative direction of rotation					
3	Negative direction of rotation	Shortest path					
4	Keep last used direction of rotation	[Not available]					

Table 5-15

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	Override motion The current motion is canceled Default setting					

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
1	Append motion The motion job is written to the job buffer, the axis stops at the motion transition					
2	Overlay motion The motion job is written to the job buffer, the motion transition is overlaid					

Note All technology functions for motion functions in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T currently have no mode input for defining the override response of the technology function. Regarding their response, these technology functions override one another, i.e., a currently active motion function is overridden and thus stopped by starting another motion function for the same technology object.

5.2.9 MC_MoveRelative

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts a positioning motion of an axis to a position relative to the start position.

		CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
	MC_MoveRelative Axis Done Execute Busy Position Command Aborted Velocity Error Acceleration ErrorID Deceleration ErrorID				Axis Execute Distance Velocity Accelera Deceler	S7-1500(T) MC_MoveRelative	Done Busy hmand borted Error	
	Jerk Mode DoneFla	ag				Jerk		
Param	Input parameters (IN) Parameter Data type			Fund	tion		Data type	Parameter
Axis		INT	Technology object TO_		TO_Positio- ningAxis	Axis		
Execut	Execute BOOL		Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute		
Distand	istance REAL Distance		Distance for the positioning operation		LREAL	Distance		
Velocit	y	REAL		Velo	ocity		LREAL	Velocity
Accele	ration	REAL		Accele	eration		LREAL	Acceleration
Decele	ration	REAL		Decele	eration		LREAL	Deceleration
Jerk		REAL		Je	rk		LREAL	Jerk
Mode		INT		Overrid	e mode			
DoneFlag		INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions					
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)						
Param	eter	Data type		Fund	tion		Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	Та	rget posit	ion reac	hed	BOOL	Done
Busy		BOOL	The	job is bei	ng proce	essed	BOOL	Busy
Comm Aborte	and d	BOOL	Th	e job was anoth	aborteo er job	by	BOOL	Command Aborted
Error BOOL An error occurred while processing the job		hile b	BOOL	Error				

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)		
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	r ID	WORD	ErrorID

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table	5-17	•
-------	------	---

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	Override motion The current motion is canceled Default setting					
1	Append motion The motion job is written to the job buffer, the axis stops at the motion transition					
2	Overlay motion The motion job is written to the job buffer, the motion transition is overlaid					

Note All technology functions for motion functions in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T currently have no mode input for defining the override response of the technology function. Regarding their response, these technology functions override one another, i.e., a currently active motion function is overridden and thus stopped by starting another motion function for the same technology object.

5.2.10 MC_MoveAdditive

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts axis positioning with user-definable dynamic values to a position that is relative to the target position of a current positioning job.

Table 5-18	MC_	_MoveAdditive
------------	-----	---------------

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Axis Execu Distar Veloci Accele Decel Jerk Donef	MC_MoveAdditive	Done Busy mmand Aborted Error ErrorID			
Input param	eters (IN)	-		Dist	.
Parameter	Data type	Func	tion	Data type	Parameter
Axis	INT	Technolo	gy object		
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge			
Distance	REAL	Distance for the positioning operation			
Velocity	REAL	Velocity			
Acceleration	REAL	Accele	eration		
Deceleration	REAL	Decele	eration		
Jerk	REAL	Je	rk		
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output para	meters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	Target posit	ion reached		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job			
Error	BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while ig the job		
ErrorID	WORD	Error ID			

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

Application-specific implementation in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T

To implement this function specific to an application in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T, please use the MC_MoveAbsolute technology function.

Figure 5-1 MC_MoveAbsolute technology function of the S7-1500(T)



At the Position parameter, specify the following value as the target position:

Position = Axis.StatusPositioning.TargetPosition + Distance

The value Distance corresponds to the distance for the additive positioning operation from the user program of the CPU31xT.

5.2.11 MC_MoveSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts superimposed positioning of an axis for an active motion job.

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
Axis Execute Distance Velocity Accelere Jerk DoneFla	_MoveSuperImpos	ed Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID	Axis Axis Execute Distance Velocity Accelere Jerk	MoveSuperImpos	ed Done Done Busy Imand borted Error ErrorID	
Input parame	ters (IN)					
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter	
Axis	INT	Technolo	gy object	TO_Positio- ningAxis	Axis	
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute	
Distance	REAL	Additional distance for superimposed motion		LREAL	Distance	
VelocityDiff	REAL	Maximum velocity deviation compared to current motion		LREAL	VelocityDiff	
Acceleration	REAL	Acceleration		LREAL	Acceleration	
Deceleration	REAL	Decele	eration	LREAL	Deceleration	
Jerk	REAL	Je	erk	LREAL	Jerk	
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions				
Output parameters (OUT)						
Parameter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter	
Done	BOOL	Target posit	ion reached	BOOL	Done	
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy	
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job	BOOL	Command Aborted	
Error	BOOL	An error occ	curred while	BOOL	Error	

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)		
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

For the VelocityDiff, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.12 MC_MoveVelocity

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function causes the axis to move at a specified speed.

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
ſ	MC_MoveVelocity				MC_MoveVelocity	
	Axis	In\	/elocity	— Axis	ln\	/elocity
	Execute	9	Busy —	- Execute	e	Busy
	Velocity	Cor	mmand		, Cor	mmand
	Acceler	P ation	Error	- Acceler	ration	Error
	Deceler	ation	FrrorID	Decele	ration	ErrorID
	lork					
	Directio	2		Directio	-	
	Directio	11		Directio	11	
	Position	1		Position		
	Controll	ed		Control	led	
	Mode					
	DoneFla	ag				
Input p	arame	ters (IN)				
Parame	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis		INT	Technolo	ogy object	TO_Speed Axis	Axis
Execute	e	BOOL	Start techno with risi	logy function ng edge	BOOL	Execute
Velocity	/	REAL	Maximur	n velocity	LREAL	Velocity
Acceler	ation	REAL	Accele	eration	LREAL	Acceleration
Deceler	ration	REAL	Decel	eration	LREAL	Deceleration
Jerk		REAL	Je	erk	LREAL	Jerk
Directio	n	INT	Direction command		INT	Direction
Current	t	BOOL	Maintain current velocity		BOOL	Current
Positior Control	n led	BOOL	Speed-controlled or position-controlled mode		BOOL	Position Controlled
Mode		INT	Overrid	le mode		
DoneFl	ag	INT	Flag for centra the status of t func	al evaluation of he technology tions		



5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
InVelocity	BOOL	Velocity reached		BOOL	InVelocity
Busy	BOOL	The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Command Aborted
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5	5-21
---------	------

Direction input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Use default of axis Default setting	The sign of the Velocity parameter defines the direction of rotation. Default setting			
1	Positive direction of rotation	Positive direction of rotation			
2	Setting not allowed	Negative direction of rotation			
3	Negative direction of rotation	[Not available]			
4	Keep last used direction of rotation	[Not available]			

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table 5-22

Current input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
False	The "maintain current velocity" function is disabled. Default setting	The "maintain current velocity" function is disabled. Default setting		
True	The current velocity and direction are retained.	The current velocity and direction are retained.		

Table 5-23

PositionControlled input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
False	Speed-controlled mode	Non-position-controlled mode		
True	Position-controlled mode Default setting	Position-controlled mode Default setting		

Table 5-24

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Override motion The current motion is canceled. Default setting				
1	Append motion The motion job is written to the job buffer, the axis stops at the motion transition				
2	Overlay motion The motion job is written to the job buffer, the motion transition is overlaid.				

Note All technology functions for motion functions in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T currently have no mode input for defining the override response of the technology function. Regarding their response, these technology functions override one another, i.e., a currently active motion function is overridden and thus stopped by starting another motion function for the same technology object.

5.2.13 MC_MoveJog

This technology function is available in ...

This technology function moves an axis in jog mode.



CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)		
			Axis JogForu JogBac Velocity Acceler Deceler Jerk Positior Controll	MC_MoveJog	'elocity Busy nmand borted Error
Input param	eters (IN)				
Parameter	Data type	Fune	ction	Data type	Parameter
		Technolo	ogy object	TO_Speed Axis	Axis
		Move axis in positive direction		BOOL	Jog Forward
		Move axis in negative direction		BOOL	Jog Backward
		Velocity		LREAL	Velocity
		Acceleration		LREAL	Acceleration
		Deceleration		LREAL	Deceleration
		Je	erk	LREAL	Jerk
		Speed-controlled or position-controlled mode		BOOL	Position Controlled
Output para	meters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter
		Velocity reached		BOOL	InVelocity
		The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy
		The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Command Aborted
		An error oc processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error
		Error ID		WORD	ErrorID

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

For the Velocity parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : A moving axis is stopped with the configured deceleration. When the setpoint velocity zero is reached, the value True is displayed at the "InVelocity" block output.
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.14 MC_MoveToEndPos

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function moves the axis against an obstacle and holds it in this position.

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
	MC_MoveToEndPo	s			
Axis	;	Done			
— Exe	Execute Busy				
Dire	ction	mmand			
Tor		Aborted			
Veid	ocity	ErroriD			
- Acc	eleration				
- Dec	eleration				
Jerk					
Dor	eFlag				
Input para	meters (IN)	-		D () (
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
AXIS					
Execute	BOOL	with rising edge			
Direction	INT	Direction command			
Torque	REAL	Torque lim	nit on drive		
Velocity	REAL	Maximun	n velocity		
Acceleratio	n REAL	Accele	eration		
Deceleratio	n REAL	Decele	eration		
Jerk	REAL	Jerk			
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output pa	ameters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
InClamping	BOOL	Clamping	g reached		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job			

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job			
ErrorID	WORD	Error ID			

For the Torque parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value <= 0 : This setting is not allowed

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Direction input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Use default of axis Default setting				
1	Positive direction of rotation				
2	Setting not allowed				
3	Negative direction of rotation				
4	Keep last used direction of rotation				

Table 5-27

Implementation of this functionality in the S7-1500 / S7-1500T

In the S7-1500 / S7-1500T, this function can be implemented with the aid of the MC_TorqueLimit technology function.

5.2.15 MC_SetTorqueLimit / MC_TorqueLimit

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables / disables force or torque limiting.

Table 5-28	MC	SetToro	ueLimit	/ MC	TorqueLimit
		0011019	aoenna	,o	

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)		
	MC_SetTorqueLimi xxis ixecute inableLimit Co /laxTorque	t Done Busy mmand Aborted Error ErrorID	Axis Enable Limit Mode	MC_TorqueLimit InCla InLim	inping iitation Busy Error ErrorID
Input pa	rameters (IN)				
Paramet	er Data type	Func	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis	INT	Technolo	gy object	TO_Speed Axis	Axis
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge			
		Enable technology function according to parameters		BOOL	Enable
EnableLi	mit BOOL	Enable and disable limit			
MaxTorq	ue REAL	Effective ma mo	x. torque on tor		
		Force or torq	ue limit value	LREAL	Limit
		Mode se	election	DINT	Mode
Output p	arameters (OUT)				
Paramet	er Data type	Func	tion	Data type	Parameter
		The drive is kept at the fixed stop		BOOL	InClamping
		The drive force or torque is limited		BOOL	InLimitation
Done	BOOL	The job is complete			
Busy	BOOL	The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy
Comman Aborted	d BOOL	The job was aborted by another job			
Error	BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Error ID		WORD	ErrorID

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

For the Limit parameter, please note the following:

- Value ≥ 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value < 0 : Use the default torque limit

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

5-29

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0		Run as force / torque limiting. Default setting			
1		Run as fixed stop detection.			

5.2.16 MC_SetCharacteristics

This technology function is available in ...

This technology function enables a valve characteristic for a Q valve or P valve.

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
	MC_SetCharactersitics		cs			
	Axis		Done			
	CamTa	ble	Busy			
_	Execute	9	Error			
	Mode		ErrorID			
	DoneEl	ad				
	Doner	ag				
Input p	oarame	ters (IN)				
Param	eter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter
Axis		INT	Axis technology object			
CamTa	able	INT	Cam tech	nology object		
Execute		BOOL	Start techr with ri	Start technology function with rising edge		
Mode		INT	Mode	selection		
DoneFlag		INT	Flag for cent the status of fur	tral evaluation of f the technology actions		
Outpu	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	Parameter Data type Fun		nction	Data type	Parameter	
Done		BOOL	The job	is complete		
Busy		BOOL	The job is b	eing processed		
Error		BOOL	An error o proces	occurred while sing the job		
ErrorID WORD Error ID		ror ID				

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table 5-31						
Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	Characteristic for Q valve stored in cam. Default setting					
1	Characteristic for P valve stored in cam.					

5.2.17 MC_ForceLimiting

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables / disables force or pressure limiting for an axis.

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)		
MC_ForceLimiting Axis ForceLimit ingProfile L Execute Mode Com Mode Axis Condition Mode Input E Number Compare Mode Condition Value ForceValue ForeDerived Value		Done Force Limited Busy nmand borted Error					
Input parameters (IN)							
Parame	eter	Data type		Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis		INT	Axis technology object				
ForceLi ingProfi	mit ile	INT	Ca	Cam technology object			
Execute	÷	BOOL	Sta	Start technology function with rising edge			
Mode		INT		Mode selection			
Conditio Mode	on	INT	Star	Start condition for pressure limiting job			
Input Number		INT	Number of the digital input of the comparison pressure sensor				
Compare Mode		INT	C	Comparison condition			
Condition Value		REAL	C	ompariso switching	n value for condition		
ForceValue		REAL	Fo	rce / pres val	sure limiting ue		
ForceDe rivedValue		REAL	Rate pre	te-of-change limiting for ressure limiting signal			

Table 5-32 MC_ForceLimiting

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)				
Output parar	Output parameters (OUT)							
Parameter Data type Function		Data type	Parameter					
Done	BOOL	The job is complete						
Force Limited	BOOL	Pressure limiting condition met or job issued						
Busy	BOOL	The job is being processed						
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job						
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job						
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID					

For the ForceDerivedValue parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value ≤ 0 : Use the default setting on the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-33

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Enable/disable force / pressure limiting. Default setting				
1	Immediately enable force / pressure limiting.				
2	Immediately enable force / pressure limiting as a function of time.				
3	Enable force / pressure limiting starting from the time a condition is met.				
4	Enable force / pressure limiting as a function of time starting from the time a condition is met.				
5	Enable force / pressure limiting as a function of position starting from the time a condition is met.				

Table 5-34

ConditionMode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Use default of technology object Default setting				
1	Enable force / pressure limiting after a delay time.				
2	Enable force / pressure limiting based on the axis position.				
3	Enable force / pressure limiting based on the pressure sensor value.				
4	Enable force / pressure limiting following an edge at the digital input.				

Table 5-35

CompareMode input parameter					
Value Meaning in the CPU31xT		Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	[Not available]				
1	Value greater than or equal to ConditionValue or logic state 1 at the digital input				
2	Value less than ConditionValue or logic state 0 at the digital input				

5.2.18 MC_ForceControl

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables and disables the pressure control mode on an axis.

Table 5-36	MC	ForceControl
1 able 5-50		

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
	MC_ForceControl				
Axis	Axis Done				
ForceC	on I	nForce			
Execute	Execute				
Mode	Mode Co				
Condition Mode Input Numbe Compa	Condition Er Mode Er Input Erro Compare				
Condition Value	on				
ForceV	alue				
ForceD rivedVa Velocity ingValu	e lue Limit e				
Input parame	ters (IN)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis	INT	Axis techno	ology object		
ForceCon trolProfile	INT	Cam techno	Cam technology object		
Execute	BOOL	Start techno with risi	Start technology function with rising edge		
Mode	INT	Mode s	Mode selection		
Condition Mode	INT	Start condition contr	Start condition for pressure control job		
Input Number	INT	Number of the digital input of the comparison pressure sensor			
Compare Mode	INT	Compariso	n condition		
Condition Value	REAL	Compariso switching	n value for condition		
ForceValue	REAL	Force / pres va	sure limiting lue		
ForceDe rivedValue	REAL	Rate-of-chan pressure lin	ge limiting for niting signal		
5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
VelocityLimit ingValue	REAL	Velocity limiting value			
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete		
InForce Control	BOOL	Pressure control was enabled			
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job		
Error	BOOL	An error oco processir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID	WORD	Errc	or ID		

For the ForceDerivedValue parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value ≤ 0 : Use the default setting on the technology object

For the VelocityLimitingValue parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : without limiting
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting on the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table	5-37
-------	------

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	[Not available]				
1	Immediately enable force / pressure control. Default setting				
2	Immediately enable force / pressure control as a function of time.				
3	Enable force / pressure control starting from the time a condition is met.				
4	Enable force / pressure control as a function of time starting from the time a condition is met.				
5	Enable force / pressure control as a function of position starting from the time a condition is met.				

Table 5-38

ConditionMode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	Use default of technology object Default setting			
1	Enable force / pressure control after a delay time.			
2	Enable force / pressure control based on the axis position.			
3	Enable force / pressure control based on the pressure sensor value.			
4	Enable force / pressure control following an edge at the digital input.			

Table 5-39

CompareMode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	[Not available]			
1	Value greater than or equal to ConditionValue or logic state 1 at the digital input			
2	Value less than ConditionValue or logic state 0 at the digital input			

5.2.19 MC_GearIn / MC_GearIn

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts relative gearing between a master axis and a slave axis.

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)			
	MC_GearIn			MC_GearIn		
	Master	InGear		 Master	InGear	
	Slave	Busy		 Slave	Busy	
	Execute Ratio Numerator	Command Aborted Error		Execute Ratio Numerator	Command Aborted Error	
	Ratio Denominator	ErrorID		 Ratio Denominator	ErrorID	—
	Velocity			 Acceleration		
	Acceleration			 Deceleration		
	Deceleration			 Jerk		
	Jerk					
	PhaseShift					
	Absolute					
	Mode					
	DoneFlag					

Input parameters (IN)						
Parameter	Data type	Function	Data type	Parameter		
Master	INT	Master Axis technology object	TO_Axis	Master		
Slave	INT	Slave Axis technology object	TO_Synchro nousAxis	Slave		
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge	BOOL	Execute		
Ratio Numerator	DINT	Gear ratio numerator	DINT	Ratio Numerator		
RatioDe nominator	DINT	Gear ratio denominator	DINT	RatioDe nominator		
Velocity	REAL	Maximum velocity for synchronizing				
Acceleration	REAL	Acceleration	LREAL	Acceleration		
Deceleration	REAL	Deceleration	LREAL	Deceleration		
Jerk	REAL	Jerk	LREAL	Jerk		

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
PhaseShift	REAL	Phase offset after reaching synchronous operation			
Absolute	BOOL	Absolute	egearing		
Mode	INT	Synchroniz sele	ation mode ction		
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
InGear	BOOL	Synchronous operation of the two axes reached		BOOL	InGear
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Command Aborted
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Errc	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500(T), only relative gearing can be established using the GearIn function.

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

l able 5-41				
Mode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting			
1	Time-based synchronization			
2	Time-based synchronization considering the direction			

5.2.20 MC_GearIn / MC_GearInPos

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts absolute gearing between a master axis and a slave axis.

CPU31xT				S7-15	500(T)		
	MC_GearIn				MC_GearInPos		
Ma	aster	InGear		_	Master	StartSync	
Sla	ave	Busy			Slave	InSync	
Exe Ra Nu Ra De Vei Con De De De De De De De De De De De De De	ecute atio umerator itio enominator elocity aceleration eceleration rk asseShift asolute ode oneFlag	Command Aborted Error ErrorID			Execute Ratio Numerator Ratio Denominator MasterSync Position SlaveSync Position SyncProfile Reference MasterStart Distance Velocity Acceleration Deceleration Jerk	Busy Command Aborted Error ErrorID	
					Sync Direction		

Input parameters (IN)								
Parameter	Data type	Function	Data type	Parameter				
Master	INT	Master Axis technology object	TO_Axis	Master				
Slave	INT	Slave Axis technology object	TO_Synchro nousAxis	Slave				
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge	BOOL	Execute				
Ratio Numerator	DINT	Gear ratio numerator	DINT	Ratio Numerator				
RatioDe nominator	DINT	Gear ratio denominator	DINT	RatioDe nominator				
		Master axis position starting from which both axes move synchronously	LREAL	MasterSync Position				

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
		Slave axis po from which t move synd	sition starting he two axes chronously	LREAL	SlaveSync Position
		Synchroni	zation type	DINT	SyncProfile Reference
		Master val	ue distance	LREAL	MasterStart Distance
Velocity	REAL	Maximum synchr	velocity for onizing	LREAL	Velocity
Acceleration	REAL	Accele	eration	LREAL	Acceleration
Deceleration	REAL	Decele	eration	LREAL	Deceleration
Jerk	REAL	Je	erk	LREAL	Jerk
		Synchronization direction		DINT	Sync Direction
PhaseShift	REAL	Phase offset after reaching synchronous operation			
Absolute	BOOL	Absolute gearing			
Mode	INT	Synchronization mode selection			
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output paran	neters (OUT)	•			
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
		Start of syn	chronization	BOOL	StartSync
InGear	BOOL	Synchronous operation of the two axes reached		BOOL	InSync
Busy	BOOL	The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Command Aborted
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

Note

For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, only absolute gearing can be established using the GearInPos function.

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Tab	le	5-43
Tub	i C	0 -0

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting					
1	Time-based synchronization					
2	Time-based synchronization considering the direction					

Table 5-44

SyncProfileReference input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0		Synchronization via dynamic response parameters Default setting				
1		Synchronization via master value distance				

Table 5-45

SyncDirection input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0		[Not available]				
1		Positive direction				
2		Negative direction				
3		Shortest path Default setting				

5.2.21 MC_GearOut

This technology function is available in ...

This technology function stops active gearing.

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)		
	MC_GearOut						
	Slave		Done	_			
	Execute	Coi A	Busy mmand Aborted Error ErrorID				
Input p	barame	ters (IN)					
Param	eter	Data type		Function		Data type	Parameter
Slave		INT	Slave Axis technology object				
Execut	e	BOOL	Start	Start technology function with rising edge			
Outpu	t paran	neters (OUT)					
Param	eter	Data type		Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	Th	The job is complete			
Busy		BOOL	The jo	The job is being processed			
Comm Aborte	and d	BOOL	The	The job was aborted by another job			
Error		BOOL	An e pr	An error occurred while processing the job			
ErrorID)	WORD		Erro	or ID		

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500(T), active gearing can only be stopped by running a suitable technology function for the slave axis.

5.2.22 MC_GearInSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts superimposed gearing between a master axis and a slave axis.

Table 5-47	MC	GearInSuperImposed

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
MC_	GearInSuperImpo	sed				
Master		InGear				
		Busy				
Execute Ratio Numera Ratio	Cor A Itor	nmand borted Error ErrorID				
Velocity	, indition					
Acceler	ation					
Deceler	ation					
Jerk						
PhaseShift						
Absolute						
Mode						
DoneFlag						
Input parame	ters (IN)					
Parameter	Data type		Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Master	INT	Master Axis obje		technology ect		
Slave	INT	Slave Axis t obje		technology ect		
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function		logy function		

with rising edge

Gear ratio numerator

Gear ratio denominator

Maximum velocity for synchronizing

Acceleration

Deceleration

Jerk

Jerk

Ratio

Numerator RatioDe

nominator Velocity

Acceleration Deceleration DINT

DINT

REAL

REAL

REAL

REAL

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)			
PhaseShift	REAL	Phase offset synchronou	after reaching is operation			
Absolute	BOOL	Absolute	gearing			
Mode	INT	Synchroniz sele	ation mode ction			
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions				
Output parameters (OUT)						
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter	
InGear	BOOL	Synchronous the two axe	operation of es reached			
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed			
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job			
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job				
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID			

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting					
1	Time-based synchronization					
2	Time-based synchronization considering the direction					

Table 5-48

5.2.23 MC_GearOutSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...

This technology function stops superimposed gearing.

Table 5-49	MC_	_GearOutSuperImposed
------------	-----	----------------------

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
MC Slave Exect Decel Jerk Mode Done	E_GearOutSuperImpo ute leration Co /	Done Busy mmand Aborted Error ErrorID			
Input param	neters (IN)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Slave	INT	Slave Axis technology object			
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge			
Deceleration	REAL	Decele	eration		
Jerk	REAL	Je	erk		
Mode	INT	Desynchron sele	ization mode ction		
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for centra the status of t func	lag for central evaluation of he status of the technology functions		
Output para	meters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fune	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	The job is complete		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	The job is being processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	The job was aborted by another job		
Error	BOOL	An error oc processir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID		

For the Deceleration parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Mode input pa	Mode input parameter							
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)						
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting							
1	Desynchronize immediately according to dynamic response parameters							

5.2.24 MC_Phasing / MC_PhasingRelative

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function is used for relative shifting of the master value to absolute gearing.

CPU31xT						S7-1500(T)			
	MC_Phasing				ſ	N	IC_PhasingRelative	•	
	Master		Done			Master	-	Done	_
	Slave		Busy			Slave		Busy	_
	Execute Command				Execute	e Con	nmand	_	
	PhaseShift Error				PhaseS	Shift	Error		
_	Velocity	,	ErrorID			Velocity	, E	ErrorID	_
	Acceler	ation				Acceler	ation C	overed	_
	Deceler	ation				Deceler	Pha:	seShift	
_	Jerk					lerk			
	Absolut	0			L	UCIN			
	Dynami	c							
	Absolut	e							
	Doneria	ag							
Input p	parame	ters (IN)							
Param	eter	Data type		Function		Data type	Parar	neter	
Master		INT	Ma	aster Axis obj	technolc ect	ogy	TO_Axis	N	laster
Slave		INT	SI	ave Axis obj	technolog ect	gу	TO_Synchro nousAxis	:	Slave
Execut	е	BOOL	Sta	rt technol with risir	ogy func ng edge	tion	BOOL	Ex	ecute
Phase	Shift	REAL		Phase	e shift		LREAL	Phase	eShift
Velocit	у	REAL	M set	laximum v tting the p	velocity for the second s	or gle	LREAL	Ve	locity
Accele	ration	REAL		Accele	eration		LREAL	Accele	ration
Decele	ration	REAL		Decele	eration		LREAL	Decele	ration
Jerk		REAL		Je	rk		LREAL		Jerk
Absolu	te	BOOL	Absolute phase shift to current phase		to				
Absolu Dynam	te lic	BOOL	Abso dyna	lute spec mic value	ification ones for the	of the axis			
DoneF	lag	INT	Flag	for centr of the state chnology	al evalua tus of the / function	ation e is			
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)						-	

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete	BOOL	Done
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	s aborted by er job	BOOL	Command Aborted
Error	BOOL	An error oco processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID
		Master va implemen	llue offset ited so far	LREAL	Covered PhaseShift

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, only a relative phase shift can be implemented in active absolute gearing using the technology function listed here.

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.25 MC_Phasing / MC_PhasingAbsolute

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function is used for absolute shifting of the master value to absolute gearing.

CPU31xT						S7-1500(T)			
	MC_Phasing						MC_PhasingAbsolut	e	
	Master Done				Mast	er	Done		
	Slave Busy			Slave Bus		Busy			
	Execute Command				Exec	ute Cor	nmand		
	PhaseS	A Shift	borted Error			Phas	eShift	borted Error	
	Velocity	,	ErrorID			Volor	sity I	ErrorID	
	Accolory	ation				V CIOC	lorotion At	osolute	
	Decelera					Acce	Pha	seShift	
	Deceler	ation				Dece	leration		
	Jerk					Jerk			
	Absolut	e							
	Absolute	e							
	DoneFla	ag							
Input s	Input parameters (IN)								
Param	eter	Data type		Funct	tion		Data type	Par	ameter
Master		INT	Mas	ster Axis t obje	technolo ect	gy	TO_Axis		Master
Slave		INT	Sla	ive Axis to obje	echnolog ct	ду	TO_Synchron ousAxis		Slave
Execut	e	BOOL	Star	t technolo with risin	ogy funct g edge	tion	BOOL	I	Execute
Phase	Shift	REAL		Phase	shift		LREAL	Pha	aseShift
Velocit	У	REAL	Ma sett	aximum v ing the pl	elocity fo	or gle	LREAL	,	Velocity
Accele	ration	REAL		Acceler	ation		LREAL	Acce	leration
Decele	eration	REAL		Decelei	ration		LREAL	Dece	leration
Jerk		REAL		Jer	k		LREAL		Jerk
Absolu	te	BOOL	Absolute phase current ph		ase shift phase	to			
Absolu Dynam	ite nic	BOOL	Abs the d	olute spe ynamic va axi	cificatior alues for s	n of r the			
DoneF	lag	INT	Flag o teo	for centra f the statu chnology	al evalua us of the function	ition s			

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)				
Output parameters (OUT)								
Parameter	Data type	Fund	tion	Data type	Parameter			
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete	BOOL	Done			
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy			
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job	BOOL	Command Aborted			
Error	BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error			
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	r ID	WORD	ErrorID			
		Master va implemen	lue offset ted so far	LREAL	Absolute PhaseShift			

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, only an absolute phase shift can be implemented in active absolute gearing using the technology function listed here.

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.26 MC_PhasingSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function is used for a superimposed phase shift between a master axis and a slave axis.

Table 5-53	MC	PhasingSuperImposed
		_i nasingoapeninposea

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
мс	PhasingSuperImpo	osed				
Master	0	Done				
Slave		Busy				
- Slave	Com					
Execute	e A	Aborted	_			
Phases	Shift	Error	<u> </u>			
Velocity	/	ErrorID				
Acceler	ation					
Decele	ration					
Jerk						
Absolut	e					
Dynam	ic					
Absolut	e					
Doner	ay					
Input parame	eters (IN)					
Parameter	Data type		Func	tion	Data type	Parameter
Master	INT	Ma	ster Axis obje	technology ect		
Slave	INT	Sla	ave Axis t obje	echnology ect		
Execute	BOOL	Star	rt technolo with risir	ogy function		
PhaseShift	REAL		Phase	shift		
Velocity	REAL	M set	aximum v ting the p	elocity for hase angle		
Acceleration	REAL		Accele	ration		
Deceleration	REAL		Decele	ration		
Jerk	REAL		Je	rk		
Absolute	BOOL	Ab	solute ph current	ase shift to phase		
Dynamic Absolute	BOOL	Abs the c	olute spe lynamic v axi	cification of alues for the is		
DoneFlag	INT	Flag c te	for centra of the stat chnology	al evaluation us of the functions		

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is complete			
Busy	BOOL	The job is being processed			
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job		
Error	BOOL	An error oco processir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID	WORD	Errc	or ID		

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

5.2.27 MC_CamIn

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts camming between a master axis and a slave axis.

	CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
	MC_CamIn				MC_CamIn		
Master		InSync			Master	Sta	artSync
		Busy			Slave		InSync
CamTat	ble Cor	mmand borted			Cam		Busy
Execute		Error			Execute	Coi /	mmand Aborted
MasterC	Offset I	ErrorID			MasterC	Offset	Error
SlaveOf	fset				SlaveOf	fset	ErrorID
Scaling Slave Scaling Master Absolute Slave Absolute CyclicM Velocity Accelera Jerk Mode DoneFla	e ode ation				Scaling Scaling Slave Scaling MasterS Position SyncPrc Referen MasterS Distance Velocity Accelera Decelera Jerk Applicat Mode Sync	EndO sync ofile ce start ation ation ion	fProfile
nput parame	ters (IN)						
Parameter	Data type		Fund	tion		Data type	Pa
laster	INT	Ma	aster Axis obj	technol ect	ogy	TO_Axis	
Slave	INT	SI	ave Axis obj	technolo ect	ogy	TO_Synchro nousAxis	
CamTable	INT	Ca	m techno	ology ob	ject	TO_Cam	
xecute	BOOL	Sta	rt technol	oav fund	ction	BOOL	

with rising edge

Shift cam in master axis

coordinates

Shift cam in slave axis

coordinates

Scale cam in master axis

coordinates

Table 5-54 MC_CamIn

Master

Offset

Slave

Offset

Master

Scaling

REAL

REAL

REAL

Master

Offset

Slave

Offset

Master

Scaling

LREAL

LREAL

LREAL

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)			
Slave Scaling	REAL	Scale cam i coord	in slave axis inates	LREAL	Slave Scaling	
Master Absolute	BOOL	Cam interpret maste	ed absolute to er axis			
Slave Absolute	BOOL	Cam interpret	ed absolute to e axis			
CyclicMode	BOOL	Cyclic exec	ution of cam			
		Master axis p synchronizatio	osition where on is complete.	LREAL	MasterSync Position	
		Synchroniz	ation profile	DINT	SyncProfile Reference	
		Master val	ue distance	LREAL	MasterStart Distance	
Velocity	REAL	Maximum velocity for synchronizing		LREAL	Velocity	
Acceleration	REAL	Acceleration		LREAL	Acceleration	
		Deceleration		LREAL	Deceleration	
Jerk	REAL	Je	erk	LREAL	Jerk	
		Use o	of cam	DINT	Application Mode	
		Synchroniza	tion direction	DINT	Sync Direction	
Mode	INT	Synchroniz	ation mode			
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for centra the status of t func	al evaluation of he technology tions			
Output parar	neters (OUT)					
Parameter	Data type	Fune	ction	Data type	Parameter	
		Start of syn	chronization	BOOL	StartSync	
InSync	BOOL	Camming	g reached	BOOL	InSync	
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ing processed	BOOL	Busy	
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	s aborted by ler job	BOOL	Command Aborted	
Error	BOOL	An error oc processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error	
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID	
		End of ca	m reached	BOOL	EndOfProfile	

For the Velocity, Acceleration and Deceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-55

Mode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting			
1	Time-based synchronization			
2	Time-based synchronization considering the direction			

Table 5-56

ApplicationMode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0		Single non-cyclic use of cam. Default setting			
1		Cyclic use of cam absolute to slave axis.			
2		Cyclic use of cam continually appending to slave axis.			

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table 5-57

SyncDirection input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0		[Not available]		
1		Positive synchronization direction		
2		Negative synchronization direction		
3		Shortest path Default setting		

5.2.28 MC_CamOut

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function stops camming between a master axis and a slave axis.

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)			
	Slave Execute	MC_CamOut	Done Busy nmand borted Error	_			
Input pa	Input parameters (IN)						
Paramet	ter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter	
Slave		INT	Slave Axis technology object				
Execute		BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge				
Output p	param	neters (OUT)					
Paramet	ter	Data type		Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The	e job is	complete		
Busy		BOOL	The jol	o is bei	ng processed		
Commar Aborted	nd	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job				
Error		BOOL	An e pro	rror oco ocessir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID		WORD		Erro	or ID		

Table 5-58 MC_CamOut

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, active camming can only be stopped by running a suitable technology function for the slave axis.

5.2.29 MC_CamInSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts superimposed camming between a master axis and a slave axis.

Table 5-59	MC	CamInSuperImposed
Table 5-59		_cammouperimposeu

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
	MC_CamInSuperImpo	sed			
Mas	ter	InSync			
Slav	/e	Busy			
Can	nTable Co	mmand Aborted			
- Exe	cute	Error			
- Mas	terOffset	ErrorID			
Slav	veOffset				
Mas Sca Sca Mas Abs Slav Abs Cyc Velc Acc Jerk Moc Don	tter ling ve ling tter olute ve olute licMode ocity eleration c le eFlag				
Parameter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Master	INT	Master Axis	s technology ject		
Slave	INT	Slave Axis ob	technology ject		
CamTable	INT	Cam techn	ology object		
Execute	BOOL	Start techno with ris	blogy function		
Master Offset	REAL	Shift cam ir coord	n master axis dinates		
Slave Offset	REAL	Shift cam i coord	n slave axis dinates		
Master Scaling	REAL	Scale cam i coord	n master axis Jinates		

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
Slave Scaling	REAL	Scale cam i coord	n slave axis inates		
Master Absolute	BOOL	Cam interpret maste	ed absolute to er axis		
Slave Absolute	BOOL	Cam interpret	ed absolute to axis		
CyclicMode	BOOL	Cyclic exect	ution of cam		
Velocity	REAL	Maximum velocity for synchronizing			
Acceleration	REAL	Acceleration			
Jerk	REAL	Jerk			
Mode	INT	Synchroniz	ation mode		
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
InSync	BOOL	Camming	g reached		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job		
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job			
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID		

For the Velocity and Acceleration parameters, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table 5-60					
Mode input p	Mode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting				
1	Time-based synchronization				
2	Time-based synchronization considering the direction				

5.2.30 MC_CamOutSuperImposed

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function stops superimposed camming between a master axis and a slave axis.

Table 5-61	MC	CamOutSu	perlm	posed
		Camoutou	poinin	poscu

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
MC Slave Execu Decele Jerk Mode Donef	_CamOutSuperImpo te eration flag	Done Busy mmand Aborted Error ErrorID			
Input param	eters (IN)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	tion	Data type	Parameter
Slave	INT	Slave Axis obj	technology ect		
Execute	BOOL	Start technol with risin	Start technology function with rising edge		
Deceleration	REAL	Decele	eration		
Jerk	REAL	Je	rk		
Mode	INT	Decoupli	ng mode		
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for centra the status of the status of the status	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions		
Output para	meters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	tion	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job		
Error	BOOL	An error occ processir	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID		

For the Deceleration parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : This setting is not allowed
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

For the Jerk parameter, please note the following:

- Value > 0 : Use the value specified at the parameter
- Value = 0 : Use the trapezoidal velocity profile
- Value < 0 : Use the default setting of the technology object

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table	5-62
-------	------

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Use the default setting of the synchronous object. Default setting				
1	Decouple according to dynamic response setting on the block.				

5.2.31 MC_CamClear

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function clears all interpolation points of a cam and sets the cam to edit mode.

Table 5-63	MC	CamClear
1 able 5-63		Camelear

	CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
	MC_CamClear						
	CamTa	ble	Done				
	Execute	9	Busy				
			Error				
		I	ErrorID				
Input p	Input parameters (IN)						
Param	eter	Data type		Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
CamTa	able	INT	Ca	am techno	ology object		
Execut	e	BOOL	Sta	rt techno with risi	logy function ng edge		
Outpu	t paran	neters (OUT)					
Param	eter	Data type		Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	-	The job is	complete		
Busy		BOOL	The	The job is being processed			
Error		BOOL	Ar	An error occurred while processing the job			
ErrorID)	WORD		Errc	or ID		

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, clearing the defined interpolation points of a cam can be achieved by directly writing to the cam's data block.

5.2.32 MC_CamSectorAdd

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function adds a new cam sector to a cam.

Table 5-64	MC_	_CamSectorAdd
------------	-----	---------------

	CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
	N	IC_CamSectorAdd	·]			
	CamTable Done		Done			
	Execute	9	Busy —			
	Data		Error			
	Table	I	ErrorID			
Input p	barame	ters (IN)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
CamTa	able	INT	Cam techno	ology object		
Execut	e	BOOL	Start techno with risi	logy function ng edge		
Data		ANY	Data area segments to	of the cam be inserted		
Table		INT	Specification ar	n of the data ea		
Outpu	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job is	complete		
Busy		BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Error		BOOL	An error oco processir	An error occurred while processing the job		
ErrorID)	WORD	Erro	or ID		

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table input pa	arameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	The Data data area specifies the data as a mathematical polynomial. Default setting					
1	The Data data area specifies the data as an interpolation point table.					

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, inserting interpolation points or polynomials of a cam can be achieved by directly writing to the cam's data block.

5.2.33 MC_CamInterpolate / MC_InterpolateCam

This technology function is available in ...



Table 5-66 MC_CamInterpolate / MC_InterpolateCam

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)					
	N	MC_CamInterpolate	•			N	IC_InterpolateCam	
	CamTa	ble	Done	<u> </u>		Cam		Done
	Execute Busy				Execute	1	Busy	
	Mode		Error					Error
	CamMo	ode	ErrorID				E	ErrorID
	StartPo	int						
	EndPoi	nt						
				J				
Input p	barame	eters (IN)						
Param	eter	Data type		Fund	ction		Data type	Parameter
CamTa	able	INT	Ca	am techno	ology ob	ject	TO_Cam	Cam
Execut	e	BOOL	Sta	rt technol with risi	logy fund ng edge	ction	BOOL	Execute
Mode		INT		Interpolat	ion mod	е		
CamM	ode	INT		Cam	type			
StartPo	oint	REAL	St	art point o rar	of definit Ige	ion		
EndPo	int	REAL	End	point of d	efinition	range		
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)						
Param	eter	Data type		Function		Data type	Parameter	
Done		BOOL	-	The job is	comple	te	BOOL	Done
Busy		BOOL	The	The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy	
Error		BOOL	Ar	error oco processir	curred w	hile b	BOOL	Error
ErrorID)	WORD		Erro	or ID		WORD	ErrorID

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

Table 5-67

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Linear interpolation Default setting				
1	Cubic splines				
2	Bezier splines				

Table 5-68

CamMode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	Cyclic relative – constant velocity. Default setting			
1	Cyclic absolute – constant position and velocity			
2	Non-cyclic – not constant at the edge points			

5.2.34 MC_GetCamPoint / MC_GetCamFollowingValue

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function reads the slave value defined for a master value and the associated first and second derivative from a cam.

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)				
ſ		MC_GetCamPoint			MC_G	etCamFollowingV	alue
	CamTat	ole	Done		Cam		Done
	Execute	•	Busy		Execute		Busy
	Mode	Cor	nmand		Leading		Error
	Position	, <i>-</i>	Error		value	E	ErrorID
	Approad	ch I	ErrorID				Value
	DoneFla	ag	Value			_	First
L						Der S	Becond
						Der	ivative
Input p	arame	ters (IN)					
Parame	eter	Data type	Fund	tion		Data type	Parameter
CamTa	ble	INT	Cam techno	ology ob	ject	TO_Cam	Cam
Execute	e	BOOL	Start technol with risir	ogy fund ng edge	ction	BOOL	Execute
Mode		INT	Mode se	election			
Positior	n	REAL	Position for wl is to be de	hich the etermine	value d	LREAL	Leading Value
Approa Positior	ch n	REAL	Assumed n posi	naster a tion	xis		
DoneFl	ag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions				
Output	param	neters (OUT)					
Parame	eter	Data type	Fund	tion		Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job is	comple	te	BOOL	Done
Busy		BOOL	The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy	
Comma Aborted	and d	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job				
Error		BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error	
ErrorID		WORD	Erro	r ID		WORD	ErrorID
Value		REAL	Read posi	tion valu	le	LREAL	Value

Table 5-69	MC	GetCamPoint / MC	GetCamFollow	/indValue
				my value

CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
	Function value of the first derivative (velocity)		LREAL	First Derivative
	Function v second c (accele	alue of the lerivative eration)	LREAL	Second Derivative

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table	e 5-70

Mode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	The position of the slave axis is determined relative to a master axis position. Default setting			
1	The position of the master axis is determined relative to a slave axis position.			
2	The first derivative of the cam point is calculated relative to a master axis position (velocity)			
3	The second derivative of the cam point is calculated relative to a master axis position (acceleration)			
5.2.35 MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation

This technology function is available in ...

This technology function sets a synchronous operation active on a slave axis to simulation, i.e., the synchronous operation remains active when disabling the slave axis via MC_Power and it is not necessary to re-synchronize it after a re-enable.

Table 5-71 MC_SynchronizedMotionSimulation

	CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
				MC_Sy	nchronizedMotionSimulation		
				Slave	InSim	ulation	
				Enable		Busy	_
						Error	
					I	ErrorID	
Input parame							
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction		Data type	Para	ameter
		Technology object of slave axis		TO_Synchro nousAxis		Slave	
		Set synchronous operation to simulation			BOOL		Enable
Output param	neters (OUT)					•	
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction		Data type	Para	ameter
		The synchronous operation is in simulation and remains active		BOOL	InSim	ulation	
		The job is being processed		BOOL		Busy	
		An error oco processir	curred w	hile b	BOOL		Error
		Erro	or ID		WORD		ErrorID

This function suppresses only the setpoint from the active synchronous operation for the slave axis. However, setpoints from superimposed motions continue to be transferred to the slave axis. Likewise, due to them, single-axis motion jobs for the slave axis are executed during the simulation.

If the slave axis was moved during an active synchronous operation simulation, canceling the simulation results in a setpoint jump on the slave axis. Therefore, when canceling the simulation, the slave axis should preferably be at the same position as when the simulation was started.

5.2.36 MC_GetCamPoint / MC_GetCamLeadingValue

This technology function is available in ...



This technology value reads the master value defined for a slave value from a cam.

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
	MC_GetCamPoint		MC_	GetCamLeadingVa	lue
CamTa	ble	Done	Cam	Cam Done	
Execut	e	Busy —	Execute)	Busy —
Mode	Mode Command		Value		Error
Positio	n	Error	Approad	ch E	ErrorID
Approa	ich I	ErrorID	Value		Value
- DoneFl	aq	Value			
	5				
Input parame	eters (IN)				
Parameter	Data type	Func	ction	Data type	Parameter
CamTable	INT	Cam techno	ology object	TO_Cam	Cam
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute
Mode	INT	Mode selection			
Position	REAL	Position for which the value is to be determined		LREAL	Following Value
Approach Position	REAL	Assumed master axis position		LREAL	Approach Leading Value
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output parar	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete	BOOL	Done
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	aborted by er job		
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID
Value	REAL	Read posi	tion value	LREAL	Value

Table 5-72 MC_GetCamPoint / MC_GetCamLeadingValue

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-73	
------------	--

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	The position of the slave axis is determined relative to a master axis position. Default setting					
1	The position of the master axis is determined relative to a slave axis position.					
2	The first derivative of the cam point is calculated relative to a master axis position (velocity)					
3	The second derivative of the cam point is calculated relative to a master axis position (acceleration)					

5.2.37 MC_CamSwitch / MC_OutputCam

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables a set distance output cam.

Table 5-74 MC	CamSwitch	/ MC	OutputCam
---------------	-----------	------	-----------

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
CamSw Execute OnPosi OffPosi Hystere Delay Mode Directio DoneFl Pos DoneFl Neg	MC_CamSwitch vitch e tion tion esis	Done Busy Error ErrorID		OutputC Enable OnPosit OffPosit Duration Mode Directio	MC_OutputCam Cam Cam ion ion I	Output Busy Error ErrorID
Input parame	eters (IN)	[_	_
Parameter		Function		Data type	Parameter	
CamSwitch		Ou	tput Cam obj	ect	Cam	OutputCam
Execute	BOOL	Sta	rt technol with risi	logy function ng edge		
		Ena	ble outpu	it cam output	BOOL	Enable
OnPosition	REAL		Start p	osition	LREAL	OnPosition
OffPosition	REAL		End po	osition	LREAL	OffPosition
		Activ	ation dur	ation of time-	LREAL	Duration
Hysteresis	REAL		Hyste	eresis	Note:	
Delay	REAL	Time-based offset of output cam switching point		These settings can be changed directly on the output cam.		
Mode	INT		Mode s	election	DINT	Mode
Direction	INT	Effective direction of output cam		DINT	Direction	
DoneFlag Pos	INT	Flag f the s	or centra tatus of t func	I evaluation of he technology tions		
DoneFlag Neg	INT	Flag f the s	or centra tatus of ti func	I evaluation of he technology tions		

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Output paran	neters (OUT)				
Parameter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter
		Status display of the last call of the technology function		BOOL	CamOutput
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	The job is being processed		Busy
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

For the Delay parameter, please note the following:

- Value < 0 : Premature activation of output cam
- Value > 0 : Delayed activation of output cam

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-75

Mode input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	[Not available]	[Not available]				
1	Disable output cam	Enable output cam Default setting				
2	Enable output cam Default setting	Enable output cam with inverted output				
3	Enable output cam with inverted output	Output cam permanently on				
4	Output cam permanently on	[Not available]				

Direction input parameter						
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)				
0	[Not available]	[Not available]				
1	Positive effective direction. Default setting	Positive effective direction. Default setting				
2	Positive and negative effective direction.	Negative effective direction.				
3	Negative effective direction.	Positive and negative effective direction.				
4	Use last active effective direction.	[Not available]				

5.2.38 MC_CamSwitchTime / MC_OutputCam

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables a set time-based output cam.

Table 5-77	MC	CamSwitchTime / M	ЛC	OutputCam
10010 0 11			···•_	ouputoum

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)			
CamSu Execut OnPos Duratio Hyster Delay Mode Directio DoneF Pos DoneF Neg	CPU31xT MC_CamSwitch witch e ition on esiss	Done Busy Error ErrorID			OutputC Enable OnPosit OffPosit Duration Mode Direction	S7-1500(T) MC_OutputCam Cam Cam ion E n	Output Busy Error ErrorID	
Input parameters (IN)								
Parameter	Data type		Fund	ction		Data type	Para	meter
CamSwitch	INT	Ou	itput Cam obj	n technol ject	ogy	TO_Output Cam	Outp	utCam
Execute	BOOL	Sta	rt techno with risi	logy fund ng edge	ction			
		Ena	ble outpu	ut cam ou	utput	BOOL	E	Enable
OnPosition	REAL		Start p	osition		LREAL	OnP	osition
			End p	osition		LREAL	OffP	osition
Duration	REAL	Activ	vation dui based ou	ration of utput carr	time- า	LREAL	Du	uration
Hysteresis	REAL		Hyste	eresis				
Delay	REAL	Time	e-based o cam switc	ffset of c hing poi	output nt			
Mode	INT		Mode s	election		DINT		Mode
Direction	INT	Effective direction of output cam		DINT	Dir	rection		
DoneFlag Pos	INT	Flag the s	for centra status of t func	al evalua he techn tions	tion of ology			
DoneFlag Neg	INT	Flag the s	for centra status of t func	al evalua he techn tions	tion of ology			

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Output paran	neters (OUT)	-			
Parameter	Data type	Function		Data type	Parameter
		Status display of the last call of the technology function		BOOL	CamOutput
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	The job is being processed		Busy
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID

For the Delay parameter, please note the following:

- Value < 0 : Premature activation of output cam
- Value > 0 : Delayed activation of output cam

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-78

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	[Not available]	[Not available]			
1	Disable output cam	Enable output cam Default setting			
2	Enable output cam Default setting	Enable output cam with inverted output			
3	Enable output cam with inverted output	Output cam permanently on			
4	Output cam permanently on	[Not available]			

Direction input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	[Not available]	[Not available]			
1	Positive effective direction. Default setting	Positive effective direction. Default setting			
2	Positive and negative effective direction.	Negative effective direction.			
3	Negative effective direction.	Positive and negative effective direction.			
4	Use last active effective direction.	[Not available]			

5.2.39 MC_CamTrack

This technology function is available in ...

This technology function enables a set cam track.



Table	5-80	MC.	CamTrack
Iable	3-00		_Cammack

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
CamTra Execute CyclicM Mode Comma Mode CamTra Length Referen Position Hystere Activati Delay Deactiv Delay	MC_CamTrack	Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID	CamTra Enable Mode InvertOu	MC_CamTrack Ick Track utput I	Output Busy Error ErrorID
Input parameters (IN)		Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
CamTrack	INT	Cam Track obj	technology ject	TO_Cam Track	CamTrack
Execute	BOOL	Start techno with risi	logy function ng edge		
		Enable c	am track	BOOL	Enable
CyclicMode	BOOL	Creation of axis referer	cam track at		
Mode	INT	Mode s	election	INT	Mode
		Inverted output	ut of cam track	BOOL	InvertOutput
Command Mode	INT	Cam track ac	tivation mode		
CamTrack Length	REAL	Cam track length			
Reference Position	REAL	Axis reference position			
Hysteresis	REAL	Hyste	eresis		
Activation Delay	REAL	Time-based o cam active	offset of output ation point		
Deactivation Delay	REAL	Time-based o cam deacti	offset of output vation point		

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
Output parameters (OUT)						
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter	
		Status display of the cam track's switching state		BOOL	TrackOutput	
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete			
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy	
Error	BOOL	An error oc processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error	
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID	

For the ActivationDelay and DeactivationDelay parameters, please note the following:

- Value < 0 : Premature activation of output cam
- Value = 0 : No influence on cam
- Value > 0 : Delayed activation of output cam

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Mode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	[Not available]	Immediately enable cam track execution.			
1	Disable cam track	Enable cam track execution with the next cam track cycle. Default setting			
2	Enable cam track Default setting	Cam track permanently on or off.			
3	[Not allowed]	[Not available]			
4	Cam track permanently on	[Not available]			

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CommandMode input parameter					
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	[Not available]				
1	Immediately disable/enable cam track. Default setting				
2	Disable/enable cam track after exiting cam track or during transition to next cam track cycle.				
3	Disable active cam track job only after all output cams have been deactivated.				

5.2.40 MC_ReadCamTrackData

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function reads output cam data from a cam track.

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
	MC_ReadCamTrackData		ata			
	CamTra	ack	Done			
	Execute)	Busy —			
	Mode		Error			
	StartCa	m	ErrorID			
	Data					
Input r	arame	ters (IN)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
CamTr	ack	INT	Cam Tracl ot	k technology nject		
Execut	е	BOOL	Start techno with ris	ology function ing edge		
Mode		INT	Modes	selection		
StartCa	am	INT	Number of th cam where s	e single output reading is to tart		
Data		ANY	Destinatior read	area for the data		
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job i	The job is complete		
Busy		BOOL	The job is be	ne job is being processed		
Error		BOOL	An error oc processi	curred while ng the job		
ErrorID)	WORD	Err	or ID		

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, changing a cam track can be achieved by directly writing to the cam track's data block.

5.2.41 MC_WriteCamTrackData

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function writes output cam data to a cam track.

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
	MC_WriteCamTrackData		ata			
	CamTra	ack	Done			
	Execute	9	Busy —			
	StartCa	m	Error			
	Data		ErrorID			
Innut r	haramo	tors (IN)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
CamTr	ack	INT	Cam Track technology object			
Execut	e	BOOL	Start techno with risi	logy function ng edge		
StartCa	am	INT	Number of the cam where wr	e single output iting is to start		
Data		ANY	Source area of the data to be written			
Outpu	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job is complete			
Busy		BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Error		BOOL	An error oco processir	An error occurred while processing the job		
ErrorID)	WORD	Erro	or ID		

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, changing a cam track can be achieved by directly writing to the cam track's data block.

MC_MeasuringInput / MC_MeasuringInput 5.2.42

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts a single measurement job for a measuring input.

Table 5-	-85 MC	_MeasuringInpu	ut / MC_Measur	ringInput		
CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
		10. Maaaunin olonoo				
	Measur	ing	t	Measur	Measuring	
	Input Done		Done	Input	Input	
_	Execute	9	Busy	Execute		Busy —
	Mode	Cor A	Aborted	Mode	Cor A	borted
	StartPo	sition	Error	Measur Range	ing	Error
	EndPos	sition	ErrorID	StartPo	sition I	ErrorID
	DoneFla	ag Mea	asuring Value1	EndPos	sition Me	asured Value1
		Mea	asuring Value2		Me	asured
			Valuez			
Input p	parame	ters (IN)	[
Param	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Measu Input	ring	INT	Cam Track technology object		TO_ Measuring Input	Measuring Input
Execut	te	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute
Mode		INT	Mode selection		DINT	Mode
			Acquisition of measured values		BOOL	Measuring Range
StartPo	osition	REAL	Start position of measuring range		LREAL	StartPosition
EndPo	sition	REAL	End position ra	of measuring nge	LREAL	EndPosition
DoneF	lag	INT	Flag for centra the status of func	al evaluation of the technology ctions		
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fun	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job is	s complete	BOOL	Done
Busy		BOOL	The job is being processed		BOOL	Busy
Comma Aborte	and d	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Command Aborted
Error		BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID)	WORD	Erre	or ID	WORD	ErrorID
Measu Value1	ring	REAL	Measure	ed value 1	LREAL	Measured Value1

5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Measuring Value2	REAL	Measure	d value 2	LREAL	Measured Value2

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Mode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)		
0	[Not available]	Measurement of the next rising edge. Default setting		
1	Measurement of the next rising edge. Default setting	Measurement of the next falling edge.		
2	Measurement of the next falling edge.	Measurement of the next two edges.		
3	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the rising edge.	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the rising edge.		
4	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the falling edge.	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the falling edge.		
5	Cancel current measurement.	[Not available]		

5.2.43 MC_MeasuringInput / MC_MeasuringInputCyclic

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function starts a cyclic measurement job for a measuring input.

CPU31xT					S7-1500(T)	
Measu Input Execut Mode StartPu EndPo DoneF	MC_MeasuringInput rring te Cor position sition I lag Mea	t Done Busy mmand Noorted Error ErrorID asuring Value1 asuring Value2		MC_ Measur Input Execute Mode Measur Range StartPo EndPos	MeasuringInputCy ing ing ing sition Me sition Me sition Measured C Measured C Lo Lo Cc	clic Busy mmand borted Error ErrorID asured Value1 asured Value2 Value2 counter stEdge punter1 stEdge punter2
Input parame	eters (IN)					
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction		Data type	Parameter
Measuring Input	INT	Cam Track technology object		TO_ Measuring Input	Measuring Input	
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute	
Mode	INT	Mode s	election		DINT	Mode
		Acquisition over the second se	of measu ues	ured	BOOL	Measuring Range
StartPosition	REAL	Start position rar	of meas	suring	LREAL	StartPosition
EndPosition	REAL	End position rar	of meas	uring	LREAL	EndPosition
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions				
Output para	meters (OUT)					
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction		Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	comple	te		
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng proce	essed	BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was anoth	s aborteo er job	d by	BOOL	Command Aborted



5.2 PLCopen blocks compared

	CPU31xT			S7-1500(T)	
Error	BOOL	An error oc processir	curred while ng the job	BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Erro	or ID	WORD	ErrorID
Measuring Value1	REAL	Measured value 1		LREAL	Measured Value1
Measuring Value2	REAL	Measured value 2		LREAL	Measured Value2
		Count for mea	asured value 1	UDINT	Measured Value1 Counter
		Count for mea	asured value 2	UDINT	Measured Value2 Counter
		Count for lo measure	st edges for d value 1	UDINT	LostEdge Counter1
		Count for lo measure	st edges for d value 2	UDINT	LostEdge Counter2

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Mode input parameter			
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)	
0	[Not available]	Measurement of rising edges. Default setting	
1	Measurement of the next rising edge. Default setting	Measurement of falling edges.	
2	Measurement of the next falling edge.	Measurement of both edges.	
3	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the rising edge.	[Not available]	
4	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the falling edge.	[Not available]	
5	Cancel current measurement.	[Not available]	

5.2.44 MC_MeasuringInput / MC_AbortMeasuringInput

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function stops a current measurement job for a measuring input.

Table 5-89	MC I	MeasuringInput / I	МС	AbortMeasuringInput
10010 0 00		nououniginput, i	····•	, worth out an ing input

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)	
Measur Input Execute Mode StartPc EndPos DoneFl	MC_MeasuringInput Measuring Done Input Done Execute Busy Mode Command Aborted StartPosition EndPosition ErrorID DoneFlag Value1 Weasuring Value2		Measu Input Execu	C_AbortMeasuringIn Jiring te Cor A	put Done Busy nmand borted Error ErrorID
Input parame	eters (IN)			-	
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Measuring Input	INT	Cam Track technology object		TO_ Measuring Input	Measuring Input
Execute	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge		BOOL	Execute
Mode	INT	Mode selection			
StartPosition	REAL	Start position of measuring range			
EndPosition	REAL	End position of measuring range			
DoneFlag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output paran	neters (OUT)	ſ			
Parameter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done	BOOL	The job is	complete	BOOL	Done
Busy	BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed	BOOL	Busy
Command Aborted	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job		BOOL	Command Aborted
Error	BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job		BOOL	Error
ErrorID	WORD	Error ID		WORD	ErrorID
Measuring Value1	REAL	Measure	d value 1		
Measuring Value2	REAL	Measure	d value 2		

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Mode input parameter			
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)	
0	[Not available]		
1	Measurement of the next rising edge. Default setting		
2	Measurement of the next falling edge.		
3	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the rising edge.		
4	Measurement of the next two edges, starting with the falling edge.		
5	Cancel current measurement.		

5.2.45 MC_ExternalEncoder

This technology function is available in ...



This technology function enables / disables an external encoder.

Table 5-91	MC_	ExternalEncoder
		-

CPU31xT				S7-1500(T)		
	MC_ExternalEncoder Axis Done Execute Busy Position Command Aborted Mode Error DoneFlag ErrorID		r Done Busy nmand borted Error	Note: For the SIMAT and MC_Home be applied to t influence an et	TC S7-1500T, the technology fun he external enco xternal encoder.	e MC_Power ctions must oder to
Input p	barame	ters (IN)				
Param	eter	Data type	Func	ction	Data type	Parameter
Axis		INT	External Encoder technology object			
Execut	e	BOOL	Start technology function with rising edge			
Positio	n	REAL	Setting value for external encoder position			
Mode		INT	Mode s	election		
DoneF	lag	INT	Flag for central evaluation of the status of the technology functions			
Output	t paran	neters (OUT)				
Param	eter	Data type	Fund	ction	Data type	Parameter
Done		BOOL	The job is	complete		
Busy		BOOL	The job is bei	ng processed		
Comm Aborte	and d	BOOL	The job was aborted by another job			
Error		BOOL	An error occurred while processing the job			
ErrorID)	WORD	Erro	or ID		

The following parameters involve functional differences or differences in the parameterization:

Table 5-92					
Mode input	Mode input parameter				
Value	Meaning in the CPU31xT	Meaning in the S7-1500(T)			
0	Disable external encoder.				
1	Enable external encoder. Default setting				
2	Direct homing of the external encoder using the Position parameter.				
3	Passive homing of the external encoder according to the default settings of the technology object. The setting of the Position parameter is used as the home position.				
4	Direct homing of the external encoder using the settings of the technology object.				
5	Passive homing of the external encoder according to the default settings of the technology object.				
6	Absolute encoder adjustment. The setting of the Position parameter is used as the home position.				
7	Actual value correction considering the Position parameter.				

Note For the SIMATIC S7-1500T, the MC_Power and MC_Home technology functions must be applied to the external encoder to influence an external encoder.

6

Links & Literature

Table 6-1

	Торіс	Title
\1\	Siemens Industry Online Support	http://support.industry.siemens.com
\2\	Download page of the entry	https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/1097431 36
\3\	Block library	Blocks for controlling the SINAMICS infeed modules (ALM) from the SIMATIC S7-1500(T) "DriveLib" block library https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/en/en/view/109475044
\4\	Block library	More blocks for connecting a drive to the SIMATIC S7-1500 / S7- 1500T. "DriveLib" block library https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/en/en/view/109475044
\5\	Block library	Blocks for parameter access to SINAMICS drives that are also suitable for multi-axis drives. "LAcycCom" block library https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/en/en/109479553
\6\	Block library	Creating cams at runtime in the user program of the SIMATIC S7- 1500T "LCamHdl" block library https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/105644659
\7\	Application example	"Verwendung der Bausteine MC_PreServo und MC_PostServo" https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/109741575
\8\	Application example	"Circular Motion on the Basis of Cam Disks "MoveCircle2D"" https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/109742306
\9\	Application example	"Die Technologieobjekte (TOs) der SIMATIC S7-1500(T)" https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/Entry ID
\10\	Application example	"Time-based IO with the SIMATIC S7-1500 and TM Timer" https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/109738186
\11\	FAQ	"Isochronous mode with PROFINET – an example with SIMATIC S7- 1500" https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/109480489
\12\	FAQ	"How Can You Integrate a Drive into the TIA Portal via the Device Master File (GSD)?" https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/73257075
\13\	Tools	TIA Selection Tool Selection assistance and configurator for automation technology http://w3.siemens.com/mcms/topics/en/simatic/tia-selection- tool/pages/tab.aspx
\14\	Tools	SIZER for Siemens Drives Configuration tool for Siemens drives https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/ww/en/view/54992004

7 History

Table 7-1

Version	Date	Modifications
V1.0	01/2017	First version
V1.1	10/2017	Correction of Table 2-2